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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders

BLC Bank S. A.L.

Beirut, Lebanon

Disclaimer of Opinion

1 We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of BLC Bank S. A.L. (the " Bank") and
its subsidiaries ( together the" Group") which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2019. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section ofour report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1.  We draw attention to Notes 1 and 4 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
concerning the Group' s ability to continue as a going concern. There is currently a high degree of
uncertainty surrounding the Lebanese banking industry and the Lebanese economy as a whole which
has been triggered by the following events:

business disruption since the last quarter of2019;

a series of Lebanese sovereign credit risk downgrades which started to deteriorate since the last

quarter of 2019 and reached a default credit risk rating (to category " RD") by all major rating
agencies in March 2020, after years of a stable credit risk rating at" B" category;
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1
restrictions on the movement and withdrawal of funds in foreign currencies;

the inability to transfer foreign currency funds outside Lebanon;

the sharp fluctuation in the foreign currency exchange rates and creation ofparallel markets with
a wide range of price variances;

subsequent to the reporting date, on March 7, 2020, the Lebanese Government announced its
decision to default on the 6.375% US$ 1, 200,000,000 bonds due on March 9, 2020;

an announcement on March 23, 2020 by the Lebanese Government to discontinue payments on
all of its US Dollars denominated Eurobonds;

further deterioration in the market value of Lebanese Government bonds to junk status, resulting
in the majority of the valuation of financial assets being adversely impacted in Lebanon;

prolonged severe inactivity in capital markets rendering markets illiquid; and

a devastating deadly blast occurred on August 4, 2020 at the Beirut seaport causing severe
property damages across a wide area of the capital along with a large number of casualties,
aggravating the financial crisis prevailing in the country.

As the situation is rapidly evolving, the effect of the default of the Lebanese Government along with
the published Lebanese Government financial recovery plan, has exposed the banking system to a
significant degree ofuncertainty, with the magnitude of the possible adverse effects on the Lebanese
economy, the banking sector and the Group, currently unknown.

The audit evidence available to us to confirm the appropriateness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis was limited due to the severity of the uncertainties
noted above as applicable to the Group and within the banking sector as a whole in Lebanon resulting
from the overwhelming systemic risk which could impact the assessment of solvency risk; liquidity
and funding risk; currency risk; credit risk and profitability, and the related future actions and
mitigation plans and factors.

This situation indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group' s ability to continue as a going concern and in the absence of any alternative evidence
available to us, we have been unable to form a view as to the applicability of the going concern
basis, the circumstances of which, together with the effect on the consolidated financial statements
should this basis be inappropriate, could result in the Group being unable to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The consolidated financial statements do
not adequately disclose this fact.

Notwithstanding the above basis for a disclaimer ofopinion, we identified the following departures from
the requirements of IFRS that have a material and pervasive impact on the consolidated financial
statements and that would have otherwise resulted in an adverse auditors' opinion:

1
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2. a We draw attention to Note 3 to the accompanying financial statements which states that these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards. Included in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31,
2019, are net financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income amounting to LBP2,631billion( ECL of LBP45billion), which
have significant exposure to sovereign debt in both Lebanese Pounds and foreign currencies; foreign
currency deposits with and certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon which are
credit impaired as at 31 December 2019 due to the current uncertainty in the Lebanese banking
industry and the Lebanese economy as a whole.

Consequently the Group has not recognized the appropriate level of impairment losses under the
expected credit loss model in relation to these financial assets, which constitutes a significant
departure from IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. It is not possible to determine with reasonable
certainty the exact value of the impairment losses as the Group has not performed an updated
expected credit loss assessment considering the factors noted above. In these circumstances, we are
unable to quantify the effect of the departure from the accounting standard and in our opinion the
effects would be both material and pervasive to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

2.b Furthermore, as a result of the monetary and economic crisis, the credit quality of the loans and
advances portfolio predominantly concentrated in Lebanon has deteriorated since the last quarter of

2019. Management is currently reviewing the credit staging of its loan portfolio taking into account
the circumstances and available information at the reporting date, the impact of which cannot be
determined at present but expected to be significant.

3. a The Group' s financial assets at fair value, which are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at LBP 133. 6billion, include financial assets at fair value ofLBP97. 5billion which are issued
by the Lebanese Government as well as corporate entities domiciled in the Republic of Lebanon.
Management has stated the aforementioned financial assets at fair value by using inputs into the
determination of fair value which are not indicative of economic reality and market conditions
existing at the reporting date, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs.  We were unable to
determine the adjustments necessary to this amount.

3. b Management has not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements the fair value of its financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost and the valuation techniques as required
by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. We were unable
to determine the fair value or the details which should be disclosed in the financial statements.

Other Matter

With reference to Article 107 of the Lebanese Code of Commerce and given the adverse circumstances
discussed in the Basis for Disclaimer ofOpinion above and disclosed under Note 1 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, we do not recommend that the Board of directors approve any
distribution of dividends to any class of shares.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board ofdirectors and those charged with governance( referred to hereafter as " management") are
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in

t accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated fmancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group' s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group' s financial reporting process.

1
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group' s consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor' s report. However, because of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer ofOpinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated

financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code ofEthics for Professional Accountants ( IESBA Code) together with the Code of
Ethics of the Lebanese Association ofCertified Public Accountants that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

1
Beirut, Lebanon

tI   .
September 23, 2020 DFK Fidu ':' E'= en Orient Deloitte & Touche
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BLC BANK S.A.L.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31,

I ASSETS Notes 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

ICash and Central Bank 5 1, 959,272,028 1, 637,968, 787
Deposits with banks and financial institutions 6 41, 369, 161 289,058, 665

ILoan to a bank 7 2,078, 252 2, 757,003
Investment securities at fair value through profit or loss 9 36, 107, 719 55,466,243
Loans and advances to customers 8 2,071, 600,987 2, 422,662,239

I
Investment securities at amortized cost 9 2,213, 812, 236 2, 574,437,894

Investment securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income 9 97,495, 880 113, 508, 874

I
Customers' liability under acceptances 11 27,988, 048 31, 939, 846
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans 12 83, 976,041 83, 861, 346
Right-of-use assets 13 22, 349, 593

I
Property and equipment 14 94,881, 950 89,895,039
Intangible assets 15 4,618,351 4,342, 575
Other assets 16 31, 498,428 25,999,673

I
6,687, 048,674 7, 331, 898, 184

Assets classified as held for sale 17 21, 732, 835 1, 297,343,966
Total Assets 6,708,781, 509 8, 629,242, 150

I
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH

IOFF-BALANCE SHEET RISKS:     36

Letters of guarantee and standby letters of credit 123, 875, 508 149,012, 881

I
Letters of credit 4,374,695 9,375, 750
Forward exchange contracts 39,311, 870 31, 502,379

I
FIDUCIARY ACCOUNTS 37 7, 228,463 14, 313, 713
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 38 14,285,795

I

I

1

I THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 47 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BLC BANK S. A.L.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Continued)

December 31,
LIABILITIES Notes 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Deposits from banks 18 173, 746, 297 149, 157,009
Customers' accounts 19 5, 310,511, 959 5, 891, 381, 129
Liability under acceptances 11 28, 332,312 32,326,606
Other borrowings 20 347, 826, 103 404,460,408
Lease liabilities 13 22,065, 854
Other liabilities 21 66,284, 074 78, 932,994
Provisions 22 20,475, 746 19, 926,438

5, 969,242,345 6, 576, 184,584
Liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale 17 769,393 1, 172, 758,271
Total liabilities 5, 970,011, 738 7, 748, 942, 855

EQUITY

Capital
23 214,000,000 213, 650,000

Preferred shares 24 152, 786,633 152, 786,633
Treasury shares 25 75,787,285)     
Reserves 26 198, 156, 339 176,028, 131
Regulatory reserve for assets acquired in

satisfaction of loans 26 64,981, 187 62, 192, 827
Brought forward retained earnings 226, 124,529 201, 383,390
Cumulative change in fair value of investments at

fair value through other comprehensive income 5, 532,268 5, 978, 157
Net( loss)/ profit for the year 48, 116,693)       61, 748,513

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 737,676,978 873, 767,651

Non-controlling interests 1, 092,793 6,531, 644
Total equity 738,769,771 880,299,295

Total Liabilities and Equity 6 708.781. 509 8 629.242. 150

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 47 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BLC BANK S. A.L.

I
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year Ended

I December 31,
Notes 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000
IContinuing operations:

Interest income
506,436,493 475,737, 145

Less: Tax on interest 22,606,098) ( 14236,906)

I Interest income, net of tax 28 483, 830,395 461, 500, 239
Interest expense 29 403, 954,752) (      328,019,646)

Net interest income 79, 875,643 133, 480,593

IFeeand commission income 30 29, 025,392 30,663,421
Fee and commission expense 31 2,285,054) ( 3, 221, 814)

Net fee and commission income 26,740,338 27,441, 607

INetinterest income and other gain on investment securities
at fair value through profit or loss, net 32 816, 126 4, 527,410

I
Other operating income 33 3, 251, 942 5, 837,600

Net financial revenues
110, 684,049 171, 287, 210

Allowance for)/write-back of expected credit losses, net 41 54, 104, 711)    7, 077, 923

I
Direct write-off of loans and advances, net 19, 860) (     19, 822)

Net financial revenues after net expected credit losses 56, 559,478 178, 345, 311
Net gain on disposal of property and equipment

and properties acquired in satisfaction of loans 12 1, 423, 797 597, 111

I Allowance for risks and charges, net 22 186,000) ( 4,011, 000)
Staff costs 34 65, 284, 814) ( 67,455, 554)
General and administrative expenses 35 26,876,465) ( 31, 987,051)

I
Depreciation and amortization 14, 15      (   7, 303,350) ( 6,399,721)
Depreciation ofright-of-useassets 13 2, 991, 207)
Loss)/ profit before income tax 44, 658,561)   69,089,096

I
Income tax expense 21 3, 360, 192) ( 7,277, 359)

Loss)/ profit for the year from continuing operations 48, 018, 753)  61, 811, 737

Discontinued operations:

I
Adjustments on disposal group carrying amount

10,606,424
Loss from discontinued operations

10, 606,424)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 17

I Loss)/ profit for the year 48, 018, 753)  61, 811, 737

Attributable to:

I
Equity holders of the Bank

48, 116,693)  61, 748,513
Non-controlling interests

97,940 63, 224

48, 018, 753) _      61, 811, 737

I

I THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES I TO 47 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BLC BANK S. A.L.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended

December 31,
Notes 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Loss)/profit for the year 48, 018, 753) 61, 811, 737

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of equity securities at
fair value through other comprehensive income 2,777,490Deferred tax 21 472, 174)

2, 305,316

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of debt securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income( net of tax)    534,923) (       3, 556, 185)

Deferred tax 21 89,034 415,390
Currency translation adjustments

212, 501)
445, 889) (       3, 353, 296)

Total other comprehensive loss 445, 889) (       1, 047,980)

Total comprehensive( loss)/ income for the year 48,464.642) 60,763, 757

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 48,562, 582) 60,700,533Non-controlling interests 97, 940 63,224
48,464,642) 60,763, 757

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 47 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BLC BANK S. A.L.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended

December 31,

Notes 2019 2018

LBP' 000 I. BP' 000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net( loss)/ profit for the year 48,018. 753) 61, 811, 737
Adjustments for.

Allowance for/( write-back of) expected credit losses 41 54, 104, 71I    (     7,077,923)
Depreciation and amortization 14, 15 7, 303, 350 6,399.721
Depreciation of right-of-use 13 2,991207
Allowance for risk and charges( net) 22 186,000 4,011, 000
Provision for end-of-service indemnities( net) 22 577, 773 2.578, 474
Allowance forl(write-back of) provision for loss on foreign currency position 22 901, 398    ( 66, 527)

Unrealized loss on investments at fair value through profit or loss 32 222, 343 51, 346
Income tax expense 21 3, 360, 192 7,277,359
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 7, 922 60,845
Gain on disposal of property acquired in satisfaction of loans 12 1, 431, 719)   (       657,956)
Dividend income 32, 33 2, 113. 583)   (     2, 149,366)
Interest expense 29 403, 954, 752 328,019.646
Interest income 28, 32, 39 484422,009)   (   456,566,618)

62, 376,416)   (    56, 308262)
Net decrease/( increase) in loans and advances to customers 39 311, 561, 082    (    77,051, 076)
Net decrease in investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 39 15, 299,001 15, 532,995
Net decrease in investments at fair value through profit or loss 39 18, 961, 180 53265,547
Net decrease in investments at amortized cost 39 322, 341, 111 384. 143, 986

Net decrease in customers' deposits 582,970, 787)   (    21, 429,762)
Net decrease in compulsory deposits with the Central Bank 8, 088,084 5, 310,600
Net increase/( decrease) in margin with banks 3, 800,352    (      1. 567,800)
Net increase in term deposits with Central Bank 276, 782,618)   (   333,395,862)
Net decrease in term deposits with a related bank 22, 796,789

Net increase in deposits from banks 24, 763, 106 80.644,700
Net increase in other assets 7, 776,898)   (     3, 009.898)
Net decrease in other liabilities 11, 244, 494)   (     5,414, 196)
Proceeds from disposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans 39 2,368,276 836,662

Settlements made from provisions 22 2.247, 789)   (      1, 807, 681)

236,216, 810) 62, 546,742

Income tax paid 4,710,054)   (    12, 265.958)
Dividends received from investments at fair value through profit or loss 32 429,627 430,386
Dividends received from investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 33 1, 683, 956 1, 718. 980
Interest paid 400, 375, 516)   (   322, 401, 981)

Interest received 487, 171. 323 452, 193, 464

Net cash( used in) igenerated from operating activities 152. 017.474)       182221. 633

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 2,444 1, 555

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 17 98, 101, 015

Acquisitionofpropertyandequipment 11, 093,575)   (    14, 485, 193)

Acquisition of intangible assets 1. 482.828)   (     3. 755,601)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 85.527,056   (    18, 239,239)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid 27 10,296,396)   (    11, 193, 187)
Settlement of lease liabilities 13 2, 840,988)   
Issuance of preferred shares 24 39,724, 132

Redemption of preferred shares series C 24 52, 762, 500)
Net decrease in loan to a bank 700,000 700,000

Acquisition of treasury shares 25 75, 787,285)   

Net( decrease)/ increase in other borrowings 20 56,441. 557) 29,091, 500
Net cash( used in)/ generated from financing activities 144, 666,226) 5. 559,945

Net( decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents 21 1, 156,644)       169,542, 339
Effect of foreign currency fluctuation and other adjustments 240,456) 5, 453, 868
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 39 471. 594, 874 296, 598,667

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 39 260. 197. 774 471. 594$24

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 47 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BLC BANK S.A.L.

I
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

IBLC Bank S. A.L., ( the " Bank"), is a Lebanese joint stock company registered in the Commercial
Register under No.  1952 and in the Central Bank of Lebanon list of banks under No.  11. The

I consolidated financial statements of the Bank comprise the financial statements of the Bank and those
of its subsidiaries( collectively the" Group"). The Group is primarily involved in investment, corporate
and retail banking.

IThe Bank' s headquarters are located in Beirut, Lebanon.

The consolidated subsidiaries consist of the following as at December 31:

Ownership Interest Country of

I
2019 2018 Incorporation Business Activity

BLC Finance S. A.L.      99. 04 98. 99 Lebanon Financial Institution

I
BLC Services S. A.L.
USB Holdings PLC( classified as

90. 67 90. 67 Lebanon Insurance Brokerage

held for sale in 2017 formerly

I
USB Bank PLC) 99. 25 99. 25 Cyprus Commercial bank

BLC Invest S. A.L. (Established
in 2012 and under liquidation
since 2017) Lebanon Entity under liquidation

Fransabank S. A.L. is the ultimate parent of the Bank.

I In its meeting held on August 16, 2018, the Board of Directors resolved to sell its investment in USB
Bank PLC to AstroBank Limited, a Cyprus registered Bank, which is owned by a group of investors
including Sehnaoui group.

IInconjunction with the sale, BLC Bank S. A.L. bought-back 10% of its own sharesares that were owned by
Sehnaoui Holding for an aggregate amount of USD43million and EUR6. 5million.

ITheMacro Economic Environment

I The unprecedented severe financial, economic and monetary crisis that Lebanon has been witnessing
since October 2019 has significantly increased credit, liquidity, market and operational risks. Banks
limited foreign currency withdrawals and restricted transfers overseas.  During December 2019, there

I was a credit risk rating downgrade by a rating agency of certain local rated banks to" C" category. Sharp
fluctuation in the market foreign currency exchange rate and the creation ofparallel markets with a wide
range of price variance were witnessed in comparison to the official peg of LBP 1, 507.50 to the US

I Dollar.

I
11



Furthermore, the sovereign credit risk rating started to witness consecutive downgrading by all majorrating agencies to reach the level of default on March 7, 2020, when the Lebanese Governmentannounced that it will withhold payment on the bonds due on March 9, 2020, followed by anotherannouncement on March 23, 2020 for the discontinuation of payments on all of its US Dollarsdenominated Eurobonds.   
This led to a further deterioration in the market value of LebaneseGovernment bonds to reach junk status. The market value of all other financial assets has also beenadversely impacted.

On April 30, 2020, the Lebanese Council of Ministers approved the Lebanese Government' s FinancialRecovery Plan ( the Plan) which includes among other items, reviewing the peg policy, restructuring ofthe government debt, restructuring of the financial system and the banking sector, and internationalfinancial assistance. On May 1, 2020, a formal request for support from the International MonetaryFund( IMF) was addressed to the IMF and discussion is still ongoing at the date of issue of the financialstatements with no progress made so far.

In this respect the Association of Banks in Lebanon ( ABL) has challenged the Government' s Plan formany uncertainties associated with the Plan and the assumptions made in it.  The ABL submitted analternative approach to tackling the Lebanese economic crisis in general and the banking crisis inparticular.

On August 4, 2020, a devastating deadly explosion occurred in the seaport of Beirut which resulted in,in addition to loss of lives, severe
propertydamagewidespread

large area of Beirut,the economic, financial and social crisis.

p in a

gaggravating

As a result of the above adverse factors, the Lebanese economy has been contracting since the lastquarter of 2019. The crisis has been intensified by the negative impact of the explosion in the seaportof Beirut and COVID- 19 pandemic affecting Lebanon and the world leading to further deterioration ofthe economic environment, disruption of business operations and regular banking practices, rise ofunemployment and social unrest.

The Group' s Financial particulars

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of December 31, 2019, as presented in the consolidatedfinancial statements,  were converted into Lebanese Pound at the official exchange rate ofUSD1 = LBP1, 507.5 which significantly varies from the exchange rates in the parallel markets.
Loss allowances on deposits with banks, deposits with and certificates of deposit issued by the CentralBank of Lebanon in foreign currencies, and Lebanese government securities held at amortized cost orat fair value through other comprehensive income have not been assessed and determined in accordancewith International Financial Reporting Standard ( IFRS) 9 expected credit losses requirements andmodels, given the uncertainties surrounding the Government debt restructuring and the impact thereofon the exposure in foreign currencies with the Central Bank of Lebanon, and the absence of observabledata in the financial market, therefore impacting Management' s ability to make adequate impairmentassessment.

Fair values of financial assets originated in Lebanon have been determined by the Group usingnotionalprices quoted on inactive and illiquid markets or usingatreality and of market conditions.  In the absence of reliableddata the Group did not

discloseare
not reflective

the f

economic

value of financial assets measured at amortized cost as required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.
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1
The adverse economic conditions and the severe recession, resulted in a significant deterioration of the
credit quality of the customers' loans portfolio concentrated in Lebanon since the last quarter 2019
despite the drop in the customers' loans portfolio.  The Group' s credit assessment of the customers'
loans portfolio is based on information available to management which did not take into account the
circumstances prevailing as a result of the economic crisis and recession which has intensified as a result
of the Covid 19 pandemic.

The downgrade of sovereign credit rating, the increase in credit, liquidity, market and operational risks
across all business sectors, the de- facto capital controls and restrictions on transfers of foreign currency
overseas exposing the banking sector to litigation, the current and future possible changes to fiscal,
economic and political conditions as well as changes to the legal and regulatory landscape in the
Republic of Lebanon stemming from the above events and the declared Government' s Recovery Plan
have led to significant uncertainties and the full range of effects on the banking sector in general and on
the Group' s financial standing is unknown as of and beyond December 31, 2019.

Management has significant concerns about the effects that the above matters will have on the equity
of the Group and the recapitalization needs that will arise once the necessary adjustments are determined
and recorded.

The Group' s Management' s current strategy is to continue operations with limited scope of services
and transactions, similarly to the banking sector as a whole, as they have since October 17, 2019.

As disclosed in Note 44 to these consolidated financial statements, the Group' s capital adequacy ratio
as at December 31, 2019, similarly to other applicable regulatory ratios, was calculated based on the
disclosed figures, and did not take into consideration the adjustments that will result from the
uncertainties reflected above once these uncertainties become reasonably quantifiable.

2.    ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
IFRSs)

2. 1 New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The following new and revised IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs and Interpretations, which became
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, have been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements.

1 2. 1. 1 IFRS 16 Leases

In the current year, the Group, for the first time, has adopted IFRS 16 Leases ( as issued by the IASB in
January 2016).   The standard replaces the existing guidance on leases, including IAS 17 ` Leases",
IFRIC 4 ` Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease", SIC 15 " Operating Leases —
Incentives" and SIC 27 " Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease".

1

1
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IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introducessignificant changes to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and financeleases and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the leasecommencement for all leases, except for short- term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast tolessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. Therefore,IFRS 16 does not have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor. The impact of the adoptionof IFRS 16 on the Group' s financial statements is described below.

The date of initial application of IFRS 16 for the Group is January 1, 2019.
The Group has opted for the modified retrospective application permitted by IFRS 16 upon adoption ofthe new standard. Therefore, there is no cumulative effect of applying the standard as an adjustment tothe opening balance of retained earnings at January 1, 2019, nor a restatement of the comparativeinformation.

Fact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassesswhether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly,IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to lasestentered
he

norlmodmodified before January 1,

on of a lease in with

2019.The change in definition ofa lease mainly relates to the concept ofcontrol. IFRS 16 determines whethera contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of anidentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group applies the definition ofa lease and related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered into or modified on or afterJanuary 1, 2019 ( whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease contract). In preparation for the first-timeapplication of IFRS 16, the Group has carried out an implementation project. The project has shownthat the new definition in IFRS 16 will not change significantly the scope of contracts that meet thedefinition ofa lease for the Group.

Impact on Lessee Accounting

Former operating leases

IFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases underIAS 17, which were off-balance- sheet.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease ( i. e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use) to all lease contracts entered into or modified on or after January1, 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairmentlosses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includesthe amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at orbefore the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonablycertain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-useassets are depreciated on a straight- line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the leaseterm. Right-of- use assets are subject to impairment.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments

that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments
or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short- term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short- term leases( i. e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short- term leases are recognized as expense on a straight- line basis over the
lease term.

Significantjudgement in determining the lease term ofcontracts with renewal options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The Group
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That
is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option
to renew( e.g., a change in business strategy).

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases ( except as noted below), the Group:
a)   recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, initially

measured at the present value of future lease payments;

b)   recognizes depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the statement of
profit or loss; and

c)    separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion ( presented within financing
activities) and interest( presented within operating activities) in the statement of cash flows.
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Financial im act of initial a lication of IFRS 16

The requirements of IFRS 16 was applied to these leases from January 1, 201IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2019 ( increase/(decrease)) is as follows: 9 The effect of adoption

December 31,   Impact of January 12018 IFRS 16 2019LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000
Right-of-use assets
Other assets 25,340,800 25,340,800Lease liability

25, 999, 673     ( 2,_

219§

215278,
5j7062

278,

6

143)  23, 721, 530Effect on net assets and liabilities 2357     (     23, 062,657)
and net impact on equity

Based on the foregoing, as at January 1, 2019:
Right-of--use assets ofLBP25.3billion were recognisedin the consolidated statement of financial

positioand
presented within right-of--use assets

Lease liabilities of LBP23. 1billion were recognised and presented within lease liabilit inconsolidated statement of financial position.   Y the

Other assets of LBP2.3billion related to previous operating leases were derecognized.
2. 2

New and amended IFRS applied with no material effect on the financial statements
The following new and revised standards and interpretations have been applied in the current
no material impact on the disclosures and amounts reported for the current and prior periods, but mayaffect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements:   

period with

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015- 2017 Cycle amending IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12and IAS 23.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Related to prepaymentcompensation. This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination

riatures
with ghtsl

inorder to allow measurement at amortized cost( or, depending on the business d atthrough other comprehensive income) even in the case ofnegative compensation a'

mfair
value

ents.
g

Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Relating to long-terminterests in associates and joint ventures. These amendments clarify that an entity

t

applies IFRS 99Financial Instruments to long- term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of thenet investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
o The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit ( tax loss), tax bases,unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty overincome tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically considers:
o Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;o Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;
o The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused taxcredits and tax rates; and

o The effect of changes in facts and circumstances
16



2. 3 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not applied
the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Effective for

annual periodsNew and revised IFRSs
beginning on or after

Definition of Material  - Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial January 1, 2020
Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

The new definition states that, ` Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial

information about a specific reporting entity.'
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation ofFinancial Statements January 1, 2023
Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities
Definition of a Business– Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 1, 2020

1 The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an integrated set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. IASB

1 also clarify that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. That is, the inputs and processes applied to
those inputs must have ' the ability to contribute to the creation of outputs' rather
than ' the ability to create outputs'.
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards January 1, 2020
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
related IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38,111 IFRIC 12,  IFRIC 19,  IFRIC 20,  IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update those
pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the framework or
to indicate where they refer to a different version of the Conceptual Framework.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:  Disclosures and IFRS 9 — Financial January 1, 2020Instruments

Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR
reform

IFRS 9— Financial Instruments
January 1, 2022

Amendments resulting from annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 -
2020( fees in the ' 10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities)
IFRS 16 Leases

June 1, 2020

Amendments to provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a
COVID - 19 related rent concession is a lease modification
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets January 1, 2022
Amendments regarding the cost to include when assessing whether a contract
is onerous

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
January 1, 2023

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfilment
value and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach
for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the
goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts.
IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as at January 1, 2023.
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New and revised IFRSs
Effective for

annual periods
be on or atter.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Effective date
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures( 2011) relating to the treatment of indefinitely. A

dedoptifeoredthe sale or contribution of assets from and investor to its associate or joint still ermit
venture.    y n is

P ted.

The directors anticipate that these new standards, interpretations, and amendments will be adopted inthe Group' s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoptionnew standards, interpretations and amendment, may have no material impact on the cosi

olthese
financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application. dated

3•   
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International FinancialReporting Standards ( IFRSs).

Basis of Pre aration and Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis etfollowing that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting
notheexplained in the accounting policies below: p rting pperiodd, as

Land and buildings acquired prior to 1999 are measured at their revalued amounts based on marketprices prevailing during 1999, to compensate for the effect of the hyper-inflation economy
prevailing in the earlier years. pry

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss and other comprehensive
Derivative financial instruments.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities are grouped according to their nature and are resentethat reflects their relative liquidity.     P d in an approximate order

Summary of significant accounting policies

Following is a summary of the most significant accounting policies applied in the rearconsolidated financial statements:  preparationanon of these

A. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of BLC Bank S. A.L. incorporate the financial statementsBank and enterprises controlled by the Bank ( its subsidiaries)     
date. Co

of the
aries) as at the reportingachieved when the Bank:   Control is

Has power over the investee( i. e. existing rights that give it the current abili to diactivities of the investee);  ty rect the relevant

Has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, andHas the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
18
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I
The Bank re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

I are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the BankIconsiders all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

I The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

I The Bank' s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Consolidation ofa subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
Ithe Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of

during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the
Bank gains control until the date the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

ITotal comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by the Bank.

I
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses ( except for foreign currency transaction
gains or loss) are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way asIunrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
I over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group' s

interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted

I and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Bank.

IUpon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit

Iarising on the loss of control is recognized in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the
previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.

IB.  Business Combinations

Acquisitions ofbusinesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
I in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-

date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the

I acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred in profit or loss.

1
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The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement ofrelationships. Such amounts are generally reco pre-existinggnized in profit or loss.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer' s previously held equity interestin the acquiree ( if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquiredand the liabilities assumed. When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognizedimmediately in profit or loss.  Where applicable,  adjustments are made to provisional values ofrecognized assets and liabilities related to facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.These are adjusted to the provisional goodwill amount.  All other adjustments including aboveadjustments made after one year are recognized in profit and loss except to correct an error in accordancewith IAS 8.

Non- controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionateshare of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair valueor at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree'sidentifiable net assets. The choice ofmeasurement basis is made on a transaction- by-transaction basis.Non- controlling interests in business acquisitions transacted so far by the Group were initially measuredat the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of net assets acquired.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity.Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profitor loss.

C.  Foreign Currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Lebanese Pound ( LBP) which is the reportingcurrency of the Group. The primary currency ofthe economic environment in which the Group operatesfunctional currency) is the U.S. Dollar.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies otherthan the entity's reporting currency ( foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary itemsdenominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the official rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at therates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measuredin terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which theyarise except for exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreigncurrency risks, and except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to aforeign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future,
which are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity.tyThese are recognized in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.
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For the purposes ofpresenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
1 foreign operations are translated into Lebanese Pound using official exchange rates prevailing at the

end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period when this is a reasonable approximation. Exchange differences arising are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity  ( attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

D.  Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group' s statement of financial position

1
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities( other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Group will account for such
difference as follows:

If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the
difference is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition ( i.e. day 1 profit or loss);
In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bringit in line with the transaction pricep ce( i. e.
day one profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset
or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational basis,
only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor( including time) that market participants would
take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

E.  Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under contract whose terms require delivery ofthe financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except
for those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets classified as at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequentlymeasured at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity' s business model for managing thefinancial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Specifically:

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding( SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortisedcost;

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows thatare SPPI, are subsequently measured at FVTOCI;

All other debt instruments( e. g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale)and equity investments are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

However, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/ designation at initial recognition ofa financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equityinvestment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirerin a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in OCI; and

The Group may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces anaccounting mismatch ( referred to as the fair value option).

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms should
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interst on the principal outstandingSPPI).

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification ofa financial asset. The Group determines the business models at a level that reflects how groups offinancial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Group' s businessmodel does not depend on management' s intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business
model assessment is performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument- by-instrument basis.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/ loss previouslyrecognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity investmentdesignated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/ loss previously recognised in OCI is notsubsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.
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1
The Group reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models
have changed since the preceding period.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to
impairment.

In the current and prior reporting period the Group has applied the fair value option and so has
designated debt instruments that meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

1 assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held
to collect and sell; or

assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/ losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described below.

g

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Group holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the Group' s financial assets.

Impairment

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the followingfinancialnanc'ial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

1
deposits at banks;
loans and advances to banks;
loans and advances to customers;
customers' liability under acceptances;
debt investment securities;
loan commitments issued; and
financial guarantee contracts issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.
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With the exception of Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired ( POCI) financial assets ( which areconsidered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amountequal to:

12- month ECL, i. e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrumentthat are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, ( referred to as Stage 1); or
full lifetime ECL, i. e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life ofthe financial instrument, ( referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on thatfinancial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.  For all other financialinstruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the I 2- month ECL.

ECLs are a probability- weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured asthe present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group under the contract and thecash flows that the Group expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economicscenarios, discounted at the asset' s EIR.

for undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the difference between the present value of thedifference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the holder of the
commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if theloan is drawn down; and

for financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to
reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Group expectsto receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that
share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the
present value of the asset' s expected cash flows using the asset' s original EIR, regardless of whether itis measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.
Credit- impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ` credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on theestimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit- impaired financial assets are
referred to as Stage 3 assets.  Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about thefollowing events:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower' sfinancial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would nototherwise consider;

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or
the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

24



It may not be possible to identifydiscrete event instead,a singleg the combined effect of several events
may have caused financial assets to become credit- impaired.  The Group assesses whether debt
instruments that are financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are credit- impaired at each
reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Group
considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.
Purchased or originated credit- impaired (POCI) financial assets

POLI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit- impaired at initial recognition.
For these assets, the Group recognises all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss
allowance with any changes recognised in profit or loss. A favourable change for such assets creates an
impairment gain.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in
measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-
month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects both
the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default:
the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Group; or
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of
assets. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or
has been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding.
When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to payits credit obligation, theg Group takes into account
both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset,
for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not
relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another
obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Group uses a variety of sources
of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from external sources.
Significant increase in credit risk

The Group monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring
that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial
instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the Group' s historical1 experience and expert credit assessment including forward- looking information.
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Modification and dereco ition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of afinancial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of thefinancial asset. A modification affects the amount and/ or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of anexisting loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affectthe cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is
not met( e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).
When a financial asset is modified the Group assesses whether this modification results inderecognition. In accordance with the Group' s policy a modification results in derecognition when itgives rise to substantially different terms.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset' s cash flows
expire ( including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when thefinancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantiallyall the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognisethe financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset' s carrying amountand the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/ loss that had been
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss, with the exception ofequityinvestment designated as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/ loss previously recognisedin OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety( e.g. when the Group retains an option torepurchase part ofa transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount ofthe financialasset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The differencebetween the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain/ loss allocated to it thathad been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain/ loss that had beenrecognised in OCI is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is nolonger recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This does not apply for equityinvestments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/ loss previously recognised inOCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange ofsecurities

Debt securities exchanged against securities with longer maturities with similar risks, and issued by thesame issuer, are not derecognized because they do not meet the conditions for derecognition. Premiumsand discounts derived from the exchange of said securities are deferred to be amortized as a yieldenhancement on a time proportionate basis, over the period of the extended maturities.
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Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at repos")g p a specified future date are not derecognized

from the statement of financial position. The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest,
is recognized on the statement of financial position reflecting its economic substances as a loan to the
Group.  The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is
accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified date are not recognized in the
statement of financial position.  The consideration paid, including accrued interest is recorded in the
statement of financial position reflecting the transaction' s economic substance as a loan by the Group.
The difference between the purchase and resale prices is treated as interest income in the statement of
profit or loss and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the financial asset ( either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Group determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Group
may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Group' s
enforcement activities will result in impairment gains.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets;

for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of
financial position as the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included

taspart of the revaluation amount in the investments revaluation reserve;
for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and
where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Group
cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined
amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component.
Any excess ofthe loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as
a provision.

F.  Financial Liabilities and Equity

Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instrumentsy issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance ofthe contractual arrangements and the definitions ofa financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interestdeducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued bythe

recognizedGrouparein
teofan entity after

ds
received, net of direct issue costs

Y
p at the proceeds

Repurchase of the Group' s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly ingain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue, or cancellation of theGro   ' s

own equity instruments.       Group' s

The component parts of compound instruments ( convertible notes) issued by the Group are classifiedseparately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractualarrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion o tionthat will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
pnumber of the entity' s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.     for a fixed

Financial Liabilities.

Financial Liabilities that are not held- for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are subsmeasured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  equently

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for tradingis designated as at FVTPL. or it

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPLinitial recognition if: 
upon

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistencythat would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, whichis managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Grdocumented risk management or investment strata up' s
provided internally on that basis; or and information about the grouping is

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the entire
combined contract is designated as at FVTPL in accordance with IFRS 9.

G.  Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set-off and the net amount is presented in the statement of financialposition when, and only when, the Group has a currently enforceable legal right to set-off theamounts or intends either to settle on a net basissettle

liabilitythecizey
or to realize the asset andsimultaneously.

H.  Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilittransaction between market participants at the measurement date.       Y in an orderly
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured by taking into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability that if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing theasset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use ofunobservable inputs.

t For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurement are categorized into level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

111 Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

t Level 2- Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
and liability either directly or indirectly; and

I Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

I.   Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts with embedded derivatives
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contract:

is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
is not an asset within the scope of IFRS 9.

J.   Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Financial guarantee contracts issued by a groupnot designated as at FVTPL and not arising from to transfer
y are initially

a financial asset,
their fair

sub

values

subsequentlyymeasured at the higher of:

asset, are subsequently

The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9; andThe amount initially recognised less,  where appropriate,  cumulative amount of incomerecognised in accordance with the Group' s revenue recognition policies.
The Group has not designated any financial guarantee contracts as at FVTPL.
K. Hedge Accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk andinterest rate risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of neoperations as appropriate. Hedges of forei t investments in foreign
gn excange risk on firm commitments are accounted for ascash flow hedges. The Group does not apply fair value hedge accounting of lio

rate risk. In addition the Group does not use the exemption to continue using IAS39
hedges

cofc amensrules, i.e. the Group applies IFRS 9 hedge accounting rules in full.  hedge accounting

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationshipinstrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its
the

hedginggyrundertaking various hedge transactions.  objectives its strategy for

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Grouphedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flowsattributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hed ' n

documents whether the

g relationships meet all of the following hedgeeffectiveness requirements:

there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedgingthe effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result fromtat e
relationship; and

that economic

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from thehedged item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrumentquantity
that

theGroup actually uses to hedge that quantity ofhedged item.      
g trument the

The Group rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comply with the hedgenecessary. In such cases discontinuation mayapplyg ratio requirements when
example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such way that some of the volumeonly part of the hedging relationship. Foris no longer part of a hedging relationship, hence hedge accounting is discontinued

of

theo the volumeiteme
of the hedged item that is no longer part of the hedging relationship.    

hued only for the volume

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relatingbut the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationshipre airtsame,

the hedge

roup
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship

mains the the Groupqualifying criteria again.       
g g

i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the
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In some hedge relationships the Group designates only the intrinsic value of options. In this case the
fair value change of the time value component of the option contract is deferred in OCI, over the term
of the hedge, to the extent that it relates to the hedged item and is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the hedged item does not result in the recognition of a non- financial item. The Group' s risk
management policy does not include hedges of items that result in the recognition of non- financial
items, because the Group' s risk exposures relate to financial items only.

The hedged items designated by the Group are time-period related hedged items, which means that the
amount of the original time value of the option that relates to the hedged item is amortised from equity
to profit or loss on a rational basis ( e. g. straight- line) over the term of the hedging relationship.

In some hedge relationships the Group excludes from the designation the forward element of forward
contracts or the currency basis spread of cross currency hedging instruments. In this case a similar
treatment is applied to the one applied for the time value of options. The treatment for the forward
element of a forward and the currency basis element is optional and the option is applied on a hedge by
hedge basis, unlike the treatment for the time value of the options which is mandatory. For hedge
relationships with forwards or foreign currency derivatives such as cross currency interest rate swaps,
where the forward element or the currency basis spread is excluded from the designation the Group
generally recognises the excluded element in OCI.

Fair value hedges

The fair value change on qualifying hedging instruments is recognised in profit or loss except when the
hedging instrument hedges an equity instrument designated at FVTOCI in which case it is recognised
in OCI.

The carrying amount of a hedged item not already measured at fair value is adjusted for the fair value
change attributable to the hedged risk with a corresponding entry in profit or loss. For debt instruments
measured at FVTOCI, the carrying amount is not adjusted as it is already at fair value, but the part of
the fair value gain or loss on the hedged item associated with the hedged risk is recognised in profit or
loss instead of OCI. When the hedged item is an equity instrument designated at FVTOCI, the hedging
gain/loss remains in OCI to match that of the hedging instrument.

Where hedging gains/ losses are recognised in profit or loss, they are recognised in the same line as the
hedged item.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship( or a part thereof) ceases
to meet the qualifying criteria ( after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for
prospectively. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged items for which the EIR
method is used( i.e. debt instruments measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI) arising from the hedged
risk is amortised to profit or loss commencing no later than the date when hedge accounting istdiscontinued.

1
31



Cash flow hedes

The effective portion of changes in the fair value ofderivatives and other qualifying hedging instrumentsthat are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve, aseparate component of OCI, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item frominception of the hedge less any amounts recycled to profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss inthe periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item.If the Group no longer expects the transaction to occur that amount is immediately reclassified to profitor loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationshipto meet the qualifying criteria ( after rebalancing, if applicable). This incudesainstances
eof)

henceases
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the occurrence of the designatedhedged forecast transaction is no longer considered to be highlyaccounted for prospectively. Any Y probable. The discontinuation is
remains in equity and is recognised

a

when the forecast
dtransin 0

transCI
action ultimately recognised

in equity
in

that time

r
loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain/ loss accumulated in equity oisreclassified and recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Hed_es of net investments in forei u o. erations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Anygain/ loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in OCIand accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulatedin the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss in the same way as exchangedifferences relating to the foreign operation.

L.  Non- Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will berecovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition isregarded as met only when the asset ( or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset( or disposal group)and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expectedto qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assetsand liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after thesale.

Non- current assets ( and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of theircarrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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M. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment except for buildings acquired prior to 1999 are stated at historical cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Buildings acquired prior to 1999 are stated at
their revalued amounts, based on market prices prevailing during 1999 less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of property and equipment, other than
land and advance payments on capital expenditures less their residual values, if any, using the straight-
line method over the useful lives estimated as follows:

Buildings 2- 4

Office improvements and installations 20

Furniture, equipment and machines 8- 20

Computer equipment 20-33

Vehicles 10- 20

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement ofan item ofproperty and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss.

N.  Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets other than
goodwill are amortized on a straight line over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer software 5 years

Key money 15 years

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

O. Leasing

Policy applicable before January 1, 2019:

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Grouinception of the lease or,  if lower,  at the present value of the minimumat their fair value at thecorresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of

nanciaa
finance lease obligation.     

payments.  The
1 position as a

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight- line basis
Policy applicable after January 1, 2019:    

over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a lease, at inception of therecognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all leasein which it is the lessee, except for short- term leases ( defined
contract. The Group

or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises

arrangements

operatingr
less

expense on a straight- line basis over

as

leasesreco with a lease term of 12 months
more representative ofthe time pattern in which economic

benefitse
lease unless another

lease payments
cnbass ans

The lease liability is initially measured at theue
from the leased assets are consumed.

the commencement date, discounted by using the rateimplicitin the lease. If thisdetermined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.    

payments that are not paid at
rate cannot be readily

Leas•e payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:fixed lease payments ( including in-substance fixed ayments), less•     variable lease payments that depend on an index orrate, initially measured using

lease incentives;
rate at the commencement date;
the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value

he index or

the exercise price ofpurchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certainto exercisea the options;
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exerciseoption to terminate the lease

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial

of an

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasingthe carrying

position.

on the lease liability (using effective interest method) ad by reducing
heuh

carrying
reflect

interestntoreflect the lease payments made.
amount to

The Group remeasures the lease liability( and makes a corresponding adjustmentuse asset) whenever:     J to the related right-of-
use

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercisein which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised le
sea purchase

lino
a

revised discount rate.
the lease

paymentsase
payments using a

change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected aa guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured byrevised lease payments
payment under

using the initial discount rate( unless the lease a discountingisde theachange in a floating interest rate, in which case a revise discount rate is used).a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not

payments change is due to a
which case the lease liability is remeasured by discountingaccounted for as a separate lease, inrevised discount rate. the revised lease paymentsYments using a
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The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use of
asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The right-of-use of assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for an
identified impairment loss as described in the" Impairment ofnon-financial assets" policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in

1 which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line `General

and administrative expenses' in the statement of profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non- lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not
used this practical expedient.

P.  Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

Real estate properties acquired through the enforcement of collateral over loans and advances, in

accordance with the Central Bank of Lebanon main circular 78, are initially recognized at their fair
value as approved by Banking Control Commission and are subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The acquisition of such assets is regulated by the local banking
authorities that require the liquidation of these assets within 2 years from Banking Control Commission
approval date. In case of default of liquidation, the regulatory authorities require an appropriation of a
special reserve from the yearly profits reflected in equity.

Upon sale of repossessed assets, any gain or loss realized is recognized as a separate line item in the
statement ofprofit or loss. Gains resulting from the sale ofrepossessed assets are transferred to reserves
to be used for capital increase starting in the following financial year.

Q. Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets,
other than investment properties and deferred taxes, to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss( ifany). Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carryingamount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reco ized
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at

amount, the carrying
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.  a revalued amount, in which case the impaidrment

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset ( cash-generatingunit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increamount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impair
carrying

been recognized for the asset ( cash- generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

revaluation

Pment loss

which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as

aan
impairment loss is

increase.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
R. Provision for Em to ees' End-of-Service Indemni

The provision for staff termination indemnities is based on the liability thatemployment ofall the staff were voluntary terminated at the reporting date. This

provisiond
ariseaif thein accordance with the directives of the Lebanese Social Security Fund and Laborlaws

is calculatednumber of years of service multiplied by the monthly average of the last 12 months' remunerations
based on the

less contributions paid to the Lebanese Social Security National Fund and interest accrued by the Fund.S.  Provisions

Provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legalobligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow ofeconomic

or

bea
constructiverequired to settle the obligation. Provisions are discounted where the impact is material.   

nefits will be

T.  Deferred Restricted Contributions

Restricted contributions derived from special and non-conventionalthe regulator are deferred until designated deals arrangement concluded with
conditions for recognition are met. At the time income isreceived it is deferred under " regulatory deferred liability" and applied to the des'according to the regulator' s requirements.    lgnated purpose

U.  Net Interest Income

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments except
or those measured or designated as at FVTPL are recognised in ' Net interest income'for those classified as held for tradingincome' and ` Interest expense' in the profit or loss account using the effective interest method.

s ' Interest

on financial instruments measured as at FVTPL is included within the fair valuemovement

nsduringInterest
period, see ' Net interest and other gain on investment securities at fair value

throughmovement      .   
the

The effective interest rate ( EIR) is the rate that exactly

profit or loss'.

financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, wherediscounts estimated future cash flows of theperiod, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 

Thappropriate, 
a

flowsorter
estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument. future cash are
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The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
at initial recognition.

The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
non- credit impaired financial assets( i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for
any expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortised cost of financial liabilities.

V.  Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial

t asset or liability (e. g. commissions and fees earned on loans) are included under interest income and
expense.

Other fee and commission income are recognized as the related services are performed.

W. Net( loss)/ income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Met income from financial instruments financial instruments at FVTPL includes all gains and losses
from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL and related interest
income, expense and dividends.

X.  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends on equity
instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in profit or
loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the investment, in which case it is
presented in other comprehensive income.

Y.  Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as

t reported in the statement of profit or loss because of the items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Bank' s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Z.  Fiduciary Accounts:

Fiduciary assets held or invested on behalf of the Group' s customers on a non-discretionary basis and
related risks and rewards belong to the account holders. Accordingly, these deposits are reflected as off-
balance sheet accounts.
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AA.  Cash and Cash Equivalents•

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original contractual maturitiesmonths including: cash and balances with the Central Bank and deposits

withsof
abank
seriod

fiand
of threeinstitutions.  
nancial

4.    

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group' s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directorsrequired to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of revenues,expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of continentliabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

gare based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
r s

lts
to be relevant. Actualmay differ from these estimates.       results

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountingestimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects onlythatatperiod or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affectsfutureboth current and
periods.

A. Critical accountin iud encs in a lin the Grou  ' s accountin olicies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations( which are dealt withseparately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group' s accountipolicies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial state
ng

ments:
GOInQ concern

Notwithstanding the uncertainties resulting from the events and conditions disclosed under Noteconsolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the going concern assumption.

1, theseBoard of Directors and those charged with governance believe that they are monitoringh
The

situation and taking all possible attainable remediation actions under the circumstances

ensuree
current

sustainability of the business and viability of the Group.   the

Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and themodel test ( Refer to the financial assets sections of note 3). The Group determines the businessat a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve aparticularss modelbusiness objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including wthe performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that how
performance of the assets and how these are managed. The Group monitors financial assets

affect

rhe
at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior tmeasured
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent

to their
objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group' s

with the

assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continuesto be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been

p continuous

a prospective change to the classification of those assets. a change in business model and so
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Significant increase ofcredit risk:

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12- month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information. Refer to note 3 and note 41 for more details.

Establishing groups ofassets with similar credit risk characteristics:

t
When ECLs are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis of
shared risk characteristics. Refer to note 3 for details of the characteristics considered in this judgement.
The Group monitors the appropriateness of the credit risk characteristics on an ongoing basis to assess
whether they continue to be similar.

Models and assumptions used:

The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying
the most appropriate model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the assumptions used in
these models, including assumptions that relate to key drivers of credit risk. See note 3 and note 42 for
more details on ECL.

B.  Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

The following are key estimations that the directors have used in the process of applying Pthe Group' s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial

1
statements:

Macroeconomic Factors and Forward Looking Information

The measurement ofexpected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in
credit risk must consider information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of
forward-looking information will require significant judgment.

The Group' s base scenario will be based on macroeconomic forecasts published by the World Bank or
International Monetary Fund ( IMF).

Probability ofdefault:

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood ofdefault over a given
time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions.

Loss Given Default:

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral and integral credit enhancements.
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5.    CASH AND CENTRAL BANK

This caption consists of the following:
December 31

20192018
of which

of which

Compulsory/      
Compulsory/Regulatory
RegulatoryBalance Deposits Balance

LBP' 000 LBP' 000
Deposits

LBP' 000 LBP' 000
Cash on hand
Current accounts with Central

7, 650,581
33,200,339

Bank of Lebanon
187,214,490 67,258,845 102, 282,325 75,346,929Term placements with Central

Bank of Lebanon
1, 368,458,422 546,266,444 1, 385,950,876 576,666,236Term placements with Central Bank

of Lebanon under leverage
arrangements( Note 10)   

355, 792, 197Accrued interest receivable
31 250 492

117,    , 545

1, 960,366, 182
17 44400545

Expected credit losses( Note 41)   
613, 525,289 1, 644,862,460 652,013, 1651 094 154)   

6 893 673)   
M.= 028 61 52 R9 1. 637 968 7R7 652 013 165

Compulsory deposits under current accounts with Central Bank ofLebanon are in Lebanese Pounds andnon- interest earning. These deposits are computed on the basis of 25% and 15% of the average weeklysight and term customers' deposits in Lebanese Pounds subject to certain exemptions, in accordancewith local banking regulations. These deposits are not available for use in the Group' sdoperations.       
ay-to- day

Regulatory deposits under term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon are made in accordance withlocal banking regulations which require banks to maintain interest earning placements in foreigncurrency to the extent of 15% of customers' deposits in foreign currencies, certificates of deposit andborrowings acquired from non-resident financial institutions.
6.   

DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
This caption consists of the following:

December 31
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000
Purchased checks
Current accounts with banks and financial institutions

10,434 496,981
Current accounts with the parent bank 37,354,469 219,754,019
Current accounts with related banks and financial institutions

2, 115, 671 3, 545, 626
952 223 644 433

40,432, 797 224,_

Term placements with banks and financial institutionsTerm placements with a related bank 43, 118,250
Blocked margins with banks and financial institutions 1 0- 

17,269,830
59 452 4,859,803

Accrued interest receivable 1. 0—  059 452 65, 287483

Expected credit losses ( Note 41) 41, 492, 249 289,693, 688
123 088) (_________§15,m)4141-- 36 289,058 665
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I

Deposits with banks and financial institutions are distributed between resident and non- resident asfollows:

December 31,
2019 2018I LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Resident
2, 695, 137 5, 401, 797

I Non- resident
38, 797, 112 284,291, 891
41, 492,249 289,693, 688

I 7.    LOAN TO A BANK

This caption consists of the following:

I December 31,
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

IRegular performing account 2, 100,000 2, 800,000
Accrued interest receivable 18, 288 22,412

I
2, 118, 288 2, 822,412

Expected credit losses( Note 41) 40,036)    ( 65,409)
2, 078, 252 2,757, 003

I As a guarantee of the above loan, the borrower has pledged in favor of the Group regular and performing
notes receivable against housing loans granted to its customers. The loan principal balance matures over
10 yearly payments of LBP700million each with final payment in year 2022.

I8.    LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers are reflected at amortized cost and consist of the following:
December 31, 2019

I
Expected

Carrying credit Net
amount losses amount
I. BP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Performing Loans-Stages 1& 2:

Retail customers:

Housing loans 536,316,092     (       2, 481, 430)       533, 834,662Personal loans 204,051, 337     (       5, 995, 917) 198, 055,420Car loans 86, 124,462     (       1, 545,409)
18, 143, 932     ( 347,563) 

84, 579,053Credit cards
17, 796,369Educational loans 11, 611, 515     (  47, 173) 11, 564, 342

I
Staff loans 7,556,456 7,556,456Private banking 1 025 577 1, 025,577Small and medium enterprises 270,490,617     (       1, 805,275) 268, 685,342Corporate 844, 190,570     (     48,204,685) 795, 985, 885

I Non-performing loans-Stage 3:       
1, 979,510,558     (     60,427,452)      1, 919,083, 106

Substandard 64,529,283     (      13, 398,543) 51, 130,740Doubtful 137,841, 162     (     60,253, 197) 77,587,965Bad
45,857,430     (     45,640, 120)     217,310

248,227,875     (    119,291, 860) 128, 936,015
2, 227,738,433     (    179,719,312)     2, 048,019, 121Accrued interest receivable 23, 581, 866 23, 581, 866Total
2,251320299     (    179,719,312)    _ 2_,Q71, 000,987

i
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December 31, 2018
Expected

Carrying credit Net
amount losses amount
LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

Performing Loans- Stages 1& 2:
Retail customers:

Housing loans 588, 130, 747     (       2, 159, 787)       585,970,960Personal loans 262,443,393     (      2, 338,227)       260, 105, 166Car loans 105, 521, 899     ( 844,480) 104, 677,419Credit cards 18, 247,952     ( 339, 515) 17,908,437Educational loans 13, 339,794     ( 104,346) 13, 235,448Staff loans 8, 882, 743 8, 882,743Private banking 10, 971, 569 10,971, 569Small and medium enterprises 322,803, 931     (       1, 752,622) 321, 051, 309Corporate 972,751, 093     (     11, 132,062) 961, 619,031
2,303, 093, 121     (     18, 671, 039)     2,284,422,082

Non- performing loans- Stage 3:
Substandard 67,245,061     (      13, 008, 995) 54,236,066Doubtful

130,430,762     (     67,820,827) 62,609,935Bad
44,461, 772     (     44,043, 141)     418, 631

242, 137,595     (    124,872,963) 117,264,632
2, 545,230,716     (    143, 544,002)     2,401, 686,714Accrued interest receivable 20,975,525 20,975, 525Total
2,566,206241     (    143. 544.002)   _ 2,422,662,239

The carrying value of loans and advances to customers includes accidentally temporary debtors with
carrying value amounting to LBP21. 8billion as at December 31, 2019 ( LBPI0.9billion as at December31, 2018).

Loans granted to related parties. amounted to LBP7. lbillion as at December 31, 2019 ( LBP12.6billion
as at December 31, 2018).

9.    INVESTMENT SECURITIES

This caption consists of the following:

December 31,
2019

2018
C/ V of

CN of
LBP FCl'   Total LBP FCY TotalLBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Accrued interest receivable
5, 180, 550 30, 789, 181 35,969,731 5,478,099 49, 788, 675 55, 266, 774

137, 988 137,988
5, 180,550 30.927. 169 36. 107.719

199,469
5.478. 09]     49,98.144 55.466.243

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 57,716,787 38,833, 460 96, 550,247 61, 376, 141 50,667,665 112,043, 806Accrued interest receivable 766,944 178, 689 945,633 791, 984 673.084 1. 465,06858,483, 731 39.012, 149 97,495. 880 62. 168. 125 51. 340.749 113, 508. 874

Financial assets at amortized cost 965,371, 514 1, 214,910,500 2, 180,282,014 1, 128, 931, 836 1, 393, 400.020 2, 522, 331, 856Accrued interest receivable 27.525. 980 6.004.242 33, 530, 222 34,907, 190 17, 198, 848 52. 106,038992.897.494 1. 220.914.742 2.213. 812. 236 1. 163. 839.026 1. 410.598.868 2.574.437.894
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I

I
A.    Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss:

I
December 31,

12019 2018
CN of CN of

LBP FCY Total LBP FCY Total
ILBP'000 LBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Quoted equities 2, 892,528 2, 892, 528 3, 111, 818 3, 111, 818
Equity securities( unquoted)  1, 177,962 1, 885,836 3, 063,798 934, 214 1, 592,725 2, 526,939

I
Foreign Eurobonds
Mutual Funds

20, 006,530 20,006, 530 39, 623, 424 39, 623,424
4,002,588 6, 004,287 10, 006, 875 4,543, 885 5, 460,708 10, 004, 593
5, 180,550 30, 789, 181 35, 969,731 5, 478,099 49,788, 675 55, 266,774

1
Accrued interest receivable 137.988 137,988 199.469 199,469

5, 180, 550 30, 927, 169 36, 107, 719 5478,099 49,988, 144 55,466,243

IInvestments at fair value through profit or loss include an amount of LBP3. 1billion as at December 31,
2019 ( LBP2.5billion as at December 31, 2018) representing the Bank' s share in startups established
based on co-sharing agreement with the regulator providing the funding.

I
Net interest and other gain/( loss) on investment securities at FVTPL are detailed under Note 32.

B. Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income:

1
December 31,

2019 2018

I CN of CN of
LBP FCY Total LBP FCY Total

LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP'000

I Equity securities( Unquoted)     17, 079,305 1, 131, 351 18, 210,656 17, 079,305 1, 132,908 18,212, 213
Lebanese government bonds 37,702, 109 37,702, 109 49,534, 757 49,534, 757
Lebanese treasury bills 40.637.482 40,637,482 44,296,836 44.296. 836

I Accrued interest receivable

57,716,787 38, 833,460 96,550,247 61, 376, 141 50,667,665 112,043, 806
766.944 178. 689 945.633 791. 984 673. 084 1. 465.068

58,483,731 39,012, 149 97,495, 880 62, 168, 125 51, 340,749 113508,874

I

1

I

I
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Debt securities at amortized cost are segregated over the remaining period to maturity as follows:
December 31, 2019

LBP
CN of F/ Cy

Remaining period Nominal
Average

AverageAmortized Coupon Nominal Amortized Coupon
to<<laturity Value Cost Rate Value Cost RateLBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Lebanese treasury bills:
Up to one year 41, 500,000 41, 503,5831 year to 3 years

7 80
127, 345,000 128,067,288 6.413 years to 5 years 3, 155, 000 3, 153, 0135 years to 10 years

7. 11
21, 648,020 23, 207,210 8, 64Above 10 years 15, 124,490 15, 477.384 10. 50

208, 772,510 211, 408.478

Lebanese Government bonds:
Up to one year
1 yeato 3 years 85, 188, 067 85, 194, 908 6. 29
3 years to 5 years 131, 542, 943 131, 026,258 7. 71
5 years to 10 years 29,923, 875 29, 921, 318 6.35
Above ] 0 years 408,625,965 410,266,461 6. 45

380,289,488 380,485, 505 7. 02
1, 035,570338 1, 036,894,450

Certificates of deposit issued by
Central Bank of Lebanon:

I year to 3 years
1, 206,000 1, 171, 439 5. 803 years to 5 years

5 years to 10 years 22,000,000 24,900, 402 9. 20-
47,885, 75000 22,612,500 6.48

Above 10 years 147, 885, 750 147, 885, 750 6.78735,000,000 744,330, 071 10. 70
757,000,000 769,230,473 171, 704, 250 171, 669,689

Corporate Bonds& Asset
backed securities:

5 years to 10 years 4,350,000 4,350,000 7. 83
4, 350,000 4,350, 000

26,499, 173 26,499, 173 6.74
26,499, 173 26,499, 173
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I

I
December 31, 2018

I
L B I'     C/V of F/Cv

Average Average
Remaining period Nominal mortiied Coupon Nominal Amortized Coupon

to Maturity Value Cost Rate Value Cost Rate

I
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000LBP'000

Lebanese treasury bills:
Up to one year 153, 081, 074 153,278, 150 7.01

II year to 3 years 96, 120, 000 96,603, 961 7. 06
3 years to 5 years 72, 725, 000 73, 302,478 6.36
5 years to 10 years 24,803,020 26,574,244 8. 45
Above 10 years 15, 124,490 15, 488,419  -       10. 50

1
361, 853,584 365, 247,252

Lebanese Government bonds:
Up to one year

45,432,277 45, 396,907 5. 91
1 year to 3 years 183, 566,009 183, 750,237 7.34
3 years to 5 years

52,536,375 51, 221, 849 6.065 years to 10 years
419, 178, 465 421, 516,638 6.47

Above 10 years
380,289,488 380,493,254 7.02

1 1, 081, 002,614 1.0.82.171$85885

Certificates of deposit issued by
Central Bank of Lebanon:

I Up to one year
38,592,000 38, 547,996 5. 303 years to 5 years 15, 000,000 15, 738,075 8. 24 91, 203, 750 90,565, 891 6. 12

5 years to 10 years 33,000,000 35,913, 990 9.02 105, 525, 000 105, 525, 000 6. 75Above 10 years 703,000,000 711, 940,281 9.54 42,360,750 42,360,750 6. 85

I 751, 000,000 763, 592,346 277,681, 500 276,999,637

Corporate Bonds& Asset
backed securities:

II 5 years to 10 years 4, 350,000 4,350,000 7.83 49,825,254 49,825, 254 6. 86
4,350,000 4,350,000 49, 825.254 49,825, 254

I During 2019 and 2018, the Bank entered into swap deals with the Central Bank of Lebanon to enhance
the yield on its investments and term placements with Central Bank as follows:

I
Nominal Value

I Classification
December 31,   December 31,

2019

LBP' 000
2018

Sold through swap:
LBP' 000

I
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in US Dollar Amortized cost 167,319,490)
Lebanese treasury bills Amortized cost 131, 657,000)Certificates ofdeposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon FVTPL 50,000,000)Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon FVTOCI 2, 560,000)

I
Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank ofLebanon Amortized cost       (       371, 154,000)    (     549,736,000)

371, 154,000)    (     901, 272,490)

Acquired through swap:

I
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon Amortized cost 56, 110,000 203,602,000Lebanese treasury bills Amortized cost 15, 124,490Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon Amortized cost 306,000,000 673,000, 000

I
362, 110,000 891, 726,490

i
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During 2019, the Group entered into swap transaction of certificates of deposit in Lebanese Pounds of
aggregate nominal value of LBP300billion in addition to certificates of deposit in U.S. Dollars of
aggregate nominal value of USD47.2million,  concluded in conjunction with the acquisition of
certificates of deposit with the Central Bank of Lebanon in Lebanese Pounds in an aggregate nominal
value ofLBP306billion along with the acquisition of term placements with the Central Bank of Lebanon
in Lebanese Pounds and U.S. Dollars in the aggregate amount of LBP7.3billion and USD32.4million,
respectively. The premium resulting from the above transaction was deferred as yield enhancement on
the new portfolio with longer maturity. The new securities mature in 2049 and yielding 11. 92% onaverage per annum.

During 2018, the Group entered into swap transaction ofterm placements with Central Bank ofLebanon
in US Dollar in the amount of LBP 167billion, Lebanese treasury bills in the amount of LBP 132billion,
and certificates ofdeposit in Lebanese Pounds ofaggregate nominal value ofLBP583billion in addition
to certificates of deposit in USD of aggregate nominal value of USD 12. 8million,  concluded in
conjunction with the acquisition of term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in the amount of
LBP204billion, Lebanese treasury bills in the amount of LBP15billion and certificates of deposit in
Lebanese pound in an aggregate nominal value LBP673billion. The premium resulting from the above
transaction was deferred as yield enhancement on the new portfolio with longer maturity. The new
securities mature in 2049 and having yield between 8. 88% and 11. 40% on average per annum.

10.  ASSETS UNDER LEVERAGE ARRANGEMENT WITH THE CENTRAL BANK OF LEBANON

December 31,
2019 2018

Assets under leverage arrangements:       
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon
Lebanese treasury bills at amortized cost

348,

88,844585; 99, 80

00 44,337,000
88, 845,980

Less:   43 7, 140,980 133, 182, 980
Leverage arrangements

437, 140, 980 133, 182, 980Net

Assets under leverage arrangement consist of term placements with the Central Bank of Lebanon and
Lebanese Treasury bills in LBP subject to interest rates between 6. 74% and 10. 66% originated from and
are pledged against the corresponding leverage arrangements with the Central Bank of Lebanon for the
same amounts in LBP (bearing a 2% interest rate), with the purpose ofproviding yield adjustment on
certain transactions related to either fresh deposits in foreign currency or sale of foreign currency againstLBP placed in term deposits at the Central Bank of Lebanon and/ or Government securities.
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The leverage and related pledged assets mechanism resulted in a yield enhancement on the following
financial assets:

December 31,

2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in U.S. Dollars 73, 038,375 73, 038,375
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in Euro 72, 231, 872

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in
LBP originated from the sale of foreign currency 190, 839,950 13, 268,000

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon

in LBP originated from the swap of certificates
of deposit in foreign currency 19,682,000 19,682, 000

355, 792, 197 105, 988, 375

During 2019, the Bank signed with Central Bank of Lebanon a netting agreement allowing to offset the
assets under leverage arrangement" versus the borrowing from the Central Bank.   The agreement

covered financial assets and liabilities resulting from transactions that took place before the netting
agreement date that have not yet matured. As such the Bank has presented" time deposits with Central

Bank of Lebanon" and term borrowing from Central Bank of Lebanon" on a net basis for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 for comparative purpose.

11.  CUSTOMERS' LIABILITY UNDER ACCEPTANCES

Acceptances represent documentary credits which the Group has committed to settle on behalf of its
customers against commitments by those customers ( acceptances). The commitments resulting from
these acceptances are stated as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position for the same
amount.

12.  ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF LOANS

The acquisition of assets in settlement of loans is regulated by the banking regulatory authorities and
these should be liquidated within 2 years. In case of default of liquidation, a regulatory reserve should
be appropriated from the yearly net profits (Note 26).

1

I
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The movement of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans was as follows:

Impairment CarryingCost Allowance Value
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Balance January 1, 2018 91, 140, 639     ( 8,643, 766)   82,496, 873Foreclosures
1, 543, 179

Disposals 1, 543, 179

ance December 31, 2018
405,332) 226,626     (  178, 706)

92,278,486     ( 8, 417, 140)   83, 861, 346Foreclosures
1, 051, 252

Disposals 1, 051, 252

aance December 31, 2019
1, 139,243) 202,686     (  936,557)

92, 190,495     (_______ 8_214,454)14454)   83, 976.041

Gain on disposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans during the year amounted to LBP 1. 43billion,
recorded under" Net gain on disposal ofproperty and equipment and properties acquired in satisfactionof loans" in the statement ofprofit or loss ( LBP658million in 2018).

13.  LEASES

The Group mainly leases premises for the Bank' s branches. The average lease term is 7 years.
Set out below, are the carrying amounts of the Group' s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and theirrelated movements during the year:

Right-of-use Lease
Assets Liabilities

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Balance January 1, 2019
25,340,800 23, 062,657Depreciation expense

2,991, 207)     Interest expense
Payments 1, 844, 185

Balance December 31, 2019 2,840,988)
22,349, 593 22,065, 854    •

The Group recognized rent expense from short- term leases of LBP323million during the year ended
December 31,  2019.  Moreover,  depreciation charge for right-of-use assets is presented within
Depreciation of right-of-use assets" in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The interest charge

on lease liabilities is presented within" Interest expense— lease liabilities" in the consolidated statementof profit or loss.

50



I

14.  PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT

Balance Disposals Transfer Transfer to Balance

January 1,    and Between Intangible December 31,

2019 Additions Adjustments Accounts Assets 2019

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Cost/Revaluation:

Owned properties 61, 194,477 1, 549,615 26,520,490 89,264,582

11
Computer hardware 17, 368,799 754,233  (       6, 811) 18, 116,221

Machines and equipment 6, 192, 122 222, 951   (      20, 762) 6, 394,311

Furniture and fixtures 6, 197, 300 183, 498  (       2,742)       129,797 6,507,853

Vehicles 1, 038,067 86,680 1, 124,747

Freehold and leasehold

Improvements 30,664,334 1, 384,518 2, 386,476 34,435,328

122, 655, 099 4, 181, 495  (      30,315)   29,036,763 155, 843, 042

IAccumulated depreciation  ( 56, 885,411) (  5, 955, 642) 19,949 62,821, 104)

Allowance for impairment

I
of owned properties       (      65, 308) 65, 308)

56, 950,719) (  5, 955, 642) 19,949 62,886,412)

Advance payments 24, 190,659 6, 912,080 29,036,763) (     140,656)     1, 925320

I
Carrying value 89,895, 039 94, 881; 50

IBalance Disposals Transfer Transfer to Balance

January 1,    and Between Intangible December 31,

I
2018 Additions Adjustments Accounts Assets 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP 1 00 LBP' 000 F, BP' 000 LBP' 000

Cost/Revaluation:

Owned properties 61, 194,477 61, 194,477

Computer hardware 15, 347,657 2, 072, 181   (      53, 526)  2,487 17, 368,799

Machines and equipment 5, 984,396 235,292  (      23,753) (       3, 813)       6, 192, 122

Furniture and fixtures 5, 707,374 300,616  ( 1, 522)       190, 832 6, 197, 300

111
Vehicles 803, 251 297,000  (      62, 184) 1, 038, 067

Freehold and leasehold

improvements 27, 785, 362 370,342  (      55,484)     2,564, 114 30,664,334

116, 822,517 3, 275,431  (     196,469)     2,753, 620 122,655, 099

11 Accumulated depreciation  ( 51, 649,309) (  5, 370, 171)       134,069 56,885,411)

Allowance for impairment

I of owned properties       (      65, 308) 65,308)

51, 714,617) (  5, 370, 171)       134,069 56,950,719)

i
Advance payments 15, 833,611 11, 209,762 2, 753, 620) (      99, 094)   24, 190,659

Carrying value 80,941, 511 89,895, 039

I
During2019, the Groupacquired 1 4 1 and47 2 in Achrafieh that were used for the purpose ofq ed p ots 73 3 p rp

I
expanding the Bank' s head office in the aggregate amount of LBP26.5billion.

1
51



15.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement of intangible assets was as follows during 2019 and 2018:

Carrying Transfer from Carrying
Value Amortization Advance Payments Value

January 1,       for the Under Property December 31,
2019 Additions Year and Equipment 2019

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Computer software 4, 342,575 1, 482, 828     (    1, 347,708) 140,656 4, 618, 351
4,342,575 1, 48282_8     (    1, 347,708) 140,656 618.351

Carrying Transfer from Carrying
Value Amortization Advance Payments Value

January 1,       for the Under Property December 31,
2018 Additions Year and Equipment 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Computer software 1, 517,430 3, 755,601     (    1, 029,550) 99,094 4,342, 575
1, 517,430 3, 755,601     (    1, 029,550) 99,094 4,342„575

16.  OTHER ASSETS

This caption consists of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018

LBP' 000  •  LBP' 000

Prepayments 9, 134,466 9, 579,243
Commission receivable 723, 117 347,393
Sundry debtors 16, 929,727 11, 536,712

Regulatory blocked deposit( a) 4,500,000 4,500,000
Fair value of forward exchange contracts 211, 118 36,325

31, 498,428 25,999,673      •

a) Regulatory blocked deposit represents a non-interest earning compulsory deposit placed with the
Lebanese Treasury upon the establishment of a subsidiary that is in the process of liquidation. This
deposit will be refunded upon finalizing the liquidation of the subsidiary, according to article 132
of the Lebanese Code of Money and Credit.
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17.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

IAftersigning a term sheet during 2017, the associated assets and liabilities ofUSB Holdings PLC (USB
Bank PLC) were consequently classified as held for sale as follows:

1
December 31,

I 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

IAssets classified as held for sale 21, 732,835 1, 297,343, 966
Liabilities directly associated with

assets classified as held for sale 769,393 1, 172, 758,271

t

I
The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the discontinued operations after the allocation of
adjustments at the financial position date are as follows:

1 December 31,
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Cash and Central Bank 349,945, 680

I
Deposits with banks and financial institutions 31, 257,384

Investment securities at amortizedcost5,265, 192
Investment securities at fair value through profit or loss 187,468, 507

I
Loans and advances to customers 535, 505, 836
Stock ofproperty 103,458, 337
Investment properties 20,814, 615 22,094,380

I
Property and equipment 20,965,211
Intangible assets 1, 287,286
Other assets

4,204,050

I
Deferred assets adjustments to reach fair value less cost to sell 918,220 35, 892, 103
Total Assets 21, 732, 835 1, 297,343, 966

I Customers' accounts 1, 143, 614,288
Other liabilities 769,393 28, 136, 242
Provisions

1, 007, 741
ITotal Liabilities 769,393 1, 172, 758, 271

I

I
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The result of the discontinued operations of USB Holdings PLC included in the statement of profit or
loss is set out below.

Year Ended

December 31,
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Net interest income

31, 516,713
Net fee and commission income

3, 740,331
Loss)/ income from securities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 710, 142)

Allowance for impairment for loans and advances ( net)   10,629, 504)
Other income/expense( net)

33, 523, 822)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 10, 606,424)
Adjustments on disposal group carrying amount 10, 606,424

During 2019, and in conjunction with the sale, the Bank received a total consideration of LBP98billion
EUR57million) representing net assets of USB Holdings PLC excluding the Company' s real estate

properties.

Proceeds from the sale of these properties will be collected by the Group upon completion of formalities.

18.  DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

This caption consists of the following:

December 31,
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Current deposits of banks and financial institutions.   22,434,983 1, 107, 519
Short term deposits

118, 748, 003 94,099, 861
Short term deposits with parent bank 31, 550,000 52,762,500
Accrued interest payable 1, 013, 311 1, 187, 129

173, 746,297 149, 157,009
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19.  CUSTOMERS' ACCOUNTS

Customers' accounts at amortized cost are detailed as follows:

December 31,

2019 2018

I
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Deposits:

Current/demand deposits 703, 433, 463 562, 520,064
Term deposits 4,354,087,800 4,988,485, 508

I Collateral against loans and advances 142,741, 222 183, 803, 982

Margins and other accounts:
IMargins for irrevocable import letters of credit 3, 508, 190 3, 837,059

Margins on letters of guarantee 26, 011, 645 25, 981, 252
IOther margins 14,299,022 63,297,400

Blocked accounts 20,368, 789 19,495,653

IAccrued interest payable 46,061, 828 43, 960,211
Total 5, 310,511, 959 5, 891, 381, 129

I
Customers' deposits include related party deposits detailed as follows:

December 31,

I
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Demand deposits 2, 428, 979 2, 124,027
Term deposits 52,808, 799 48,453, 147
Collateral against loans and advances 410, 145 594,425
Margins on letters of guarantee 1, 500
Accrued interest payable 931, 810 696,201

56,579,733 51, 869,300

IBrackets of deposits were as follows:

LBP

December 31, 2019

F/ Cv
to to

Total Total Total Total

I
Deposits Deposits Deposits Deposits Total
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP'000

Less than LBP250million 609,347,901 35 687,594,385 19 1, 296,942,286

I
Between LBP250million

and LBP1. 5billion 609,070,250 34 1, 138, 719,789 32 1, 747,790,039
Above LBP1. 5billion 553, 428,787 31 1, 712,350,847 49 2,265, 779,634

1, 771 R_4. 3$      100 3, 538, 665,021 100 5,310,51 1, 959

I
55



December 31, 2018
LBP F/ Cs

to to
Total Total Total Total

Deposits Deposits Deposits Deposits Total
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Less than LBP250million 687,790, 164 32 630,879, 635 17 1, 318, 669, 799Between LBP250million
and LBP1. 5biliion 709,562, 126 33 1, 059,620, 176 28 1, 769, 182, 302Above LBP 1. 5billion 736,366, 147 35 2,067, 162, 881 55 2, 803, 529,028

2, 133, 718,437 100 3, 757,662, 692 100 5, 891, 381. 129

Deposits from customers include coded deposit accounts in the aggregate amount of LBP63billion as at
December 31, 2019 ( LBP106billion as at December 31, 2018). These accounts are subject to the
provisions of Article 3 of the Banking Secrecy Law dated September 3, 1956 which stipulates that the
Bank' s management, in the normal course of business, cannot reveal the identities of these depositors
to third parties, including its independent public accountants.

Deposits from customers include fiduciary deposits received from resident and non-resident banks for
a total amount of LBP 19billion and LBP 11 billion respectively as at December 31, 2019( LBP2Obillion
and LBP205billion respectively as at December 31, 2018).  -

The average balance ofdeposits and related cost of funds over the last 3 years were as follows:
Deposits in LBP Deposits in F/Cv

Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Balance Interest Cost of

Year of Deposits Rate of Deposits Rate Funds LBP
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

2019 1, 980,000,000 8. 50 3, 665,000,000 5. 76 382,284,204
2018 2,281, 000,000 6. 80 3, 686,000,000 4.42 320,748, 361
2017 2, 457,000,000 5. 71 3, 555, 000,000 3. 96 282,304,935

20.  OTHER BORROWINGS

December 31,

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Soft loans from Central Bank of Lebanon ( a)  17, 734,000
Borrowings from Central Bank of Lebanon (b)       347,425,980 382,067,955
Other borrowings

397,485 4,463, 067
347,823,465 404,265,022

Accrued interest payable 2,638 195, 386
347 826. 103 404,460,408

a) On March 21, 2019, the soft loan from the Central Bank ofLebanon in the amount of LBP 17. 7hillion
matured.
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I b) Outstanding facilities in Lebanese Pounds granted from the Central Bank of Lebanon in the amount
of LBP347billion( LBP382billion as at December 31, 2018) are in accordance with Central Bank of

I
Lebanon Basic Decision No. 6116 of March 7,  1996 and its amendments by which the Bank
benefited from credit facilities granted against loans the Bank has granted, on its own responsibility,
to its customers, pursuant to certain conditions, rules and mechanism. These facilities bear interest

I
rate of 1% computed annually and paid monthly. Part of these facilities are collateralized by
Lebanese treasury bills and certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon.

ITheremaining contractual maturities of all above borrowings are as follows:

2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Up to 1 year 400, 123 22, 392,453
Over 5 years 347,425, 980 382, 067,955

1 347, 826, 103 404,460,408

The movement of other borrowings is detailed as follows:

I 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I Balance, beginning of year
Additions

404,265,022 375, 173, 522

30,425, 701
Settlements 56,441, 557)    (    1, 334,201)

IBalance, end of year 347, 823, 465 404,265,022

21.  OTHER LIABILITIES

IIThis caption consists of the following:
December 31,

I
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Withheld taxes 5, 600,305 3, 517,952
Deferred tax liability on accrued interest receivable 4,239,981 1, 711, 492

Deferred tax liability on future dividend distribution of subsidiaries 664,625 630, 155
Deferred tax liability on other comprehensive income 1, 133, 114 1, 222, 148

IOther deferred taxes 1, 639,606 1, 639,606
Due to the National Social Security Fund 721, 506 762, 172
Checks and incoming payment orders in course of settlement 3, 762, 827 18, 054, 110

IBlocked capital subscriptions for companies under incorporation 91, 416 414,764

Accrued expenses 16, 038, 920 12, 408,482
Financial guarantees 140,681 654,419

I Payable to personnel and directors 5, 245, 926 7,518, 849

Sundry accounts payable 20, 136,211 22,597,479
Provision for income tax (a)      5, 632,270 6,982, 132

I Deferred income 1, 225,337 807, 885
Payable to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary under liquidation 11, 349 11, 349

Regulatory deferred liability( b)     

1 66,284,074 78,932, 994
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a)  Below is the reconciliation of income tax expense:

2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Loss)/ profit before tax from continuing operations 44,658, 561) 69, 089, 096

Income tax on enacted applicable rates 6, 575, 666) 12, 631, 627

Effect of non-deductible expense and

non-taxable income 9,935, 858     (    5, 354,268)

Income tax expense 3, 360, 192 7,277,359
Other additional provisions/ adjustments 2,272, 078     (      295,227)

Provision for income tax 5, 632, 270 6, 982, 132

In 2017, the Bank' s accounts and tax returns for the years 2012 until 2014 ( inclusive) were subject

to examination by the tax authorities which resulted in a preliminary assessment of LBP2.99billion.
A final decision was reached during 2018 where the Bank settled LBP2.8billion against the
additional income tax liability account. The Bank' s tax returns for the years 2015 till 2019 inclusive
are still subject to review by the relevant tax authorities. Any additional tax liability depends on the
outcome of such reviews.

b) In accordance with the Central Bank of Lebanon Intermediary Circular number 446, deferred
liability which is regulated in nature shall be appropriated, among other things, after deducting the
relevant tax liability, to collective provision for credit risks associated with the loan book at a
minimum of 2% of the weighted credit risks, and that in anticipation of implementation of IFRS 9

for impairment, as and when quantified effective on January 1, 2018.

During 2018, the Group allocated an amount of LBP 103billion from regulatory deferred liability to
retained earnings to offset the expected credit losses resulting from the application of IFRS 9 in
accordance with the Central Bank of Lebanon requirements.

Below is the movement of regulatory deferred liability for the year:

2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Balance January 1 107,590,244

Offset against retained earnings upon adopting IFRS 9 103, 399, 141)
Transfer to provision for risks and charges 4, 191, 103)

Balance December 31
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22.  PROVISIONS

IProvisions consist of the following:

IDecember31,

2019 2018

1 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Provision for staff end-of-service indemnity( a)  6,825, 724 7,440,023

I Provision for risk and charges( b)    12, 161, 416 11, 850,310

Provision for expected credit losses on unutilized limits
and off-balance sheet commitments 364, 844 413, 741

I Provision for loss on foreign currency position 1, 123, 762 222, 364

20,475, 746

19222,
364

a) The movement of the provision for staff end- of-service indemnity was as follows:

2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

t
Balancec January 1 7,440,023 6, 231, 478

I
Additions- net( Note 34) 577,773 2,578, 474

Settlements 1, 192,072)    (    1, 369,929)

Balance December 31 6, 825, 724 7,440,023

Additions are netted by LBPI. 2billion representing estimated interest income accumulated by the
tLebanese National Social Security Fund( LBP1. lbillion during 2018).

t
b) The movement of the provision for risk and charges was as follows:

I
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Balance January 1 11, 850,310 4,085, 959
Additions 186,000 4,011, 000
Transfer from regulatory deferred liability 4, 191, 103

I
Adjustment on assets held for sale 1, 180, 823
Settlements 1, 055,717)    (      437,752)
Balance December 31 12, 161, 416 11, 850,310

I
111S9



23.  SHARE CAPITAL

On December 17, 2018, the Extraordinary General Assembly of shareholders resolved to increase the
Bank' s capital by LBP350million through issuing 350,000 common shares having a par value of
LBP1, 000 each which was subscribed through transferring LBP350million from non-distributable
reserve as a result of redeeming of series " C" preferred shares ( Note 24). This capital increase was
approved by the Central Council of the Central Bank of Lebanon on March 12, 2019. Hence, as at
December 31, 2019, the Bank' s ordinary share capital consist of 214,000,000 shares of a par value of
LBP1, 000 each fully paid ( 213, 650,000 shares of a par value of LBP1, 000 each as at December 31,
2018).

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank has a fixed exchange position in the amount of
USD122, 508,656, authorized by the Central Bank of Lebanon, to hedge its equity against exchange
fluctuations within the limit of60% of equity denominated in Lebanese Pound.

On January 30,  2020 the Extraordinary General Assembly of shareholders,  and based on the
intermediate circular 532 dated November 4, 2019 described below, the Bank called additional cash
contribution from shareholders in the amount ofUSD93. 86million.

Circular 532 required an increase by 20% ofthe Bank' s common equity Tier I as at December 31, 2018.
The contribution should be in US Dollars and 50% should be executed by the end of 2019, and the
remaining by June 30, 2020. In this respect, subsequent to the financial position date, the shareholders
injected USD45.96million in the form of cash contribution representing the first required 10%.
Furthermore, the Central Bank of Lebanon, through its intermediate circular 567 dated August 26, 2020,
extended the requirement for banks, to increase common equity Tier I one by 20% up to December 31,
2020.

This sort of financial instrument is accounted for in foreign currency and therefore allows hedging
against national currency exchange fluctuation.  According to local banking regulations,  cash
contribution to capital is considered as Tier I capital."

24.  PREFERRED SHARES

Tier I Non-Cumulative Perpetual
Redeemable preferred shares

Expected
Issue Number of Annual December 31,
Date Shares Return 2019 2018
Year LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Series" C"     2013 350,000 6. 75
Series" D"     2016 750,000 6. 75 113, 062, 501 113,062, 501
Series" E"     2018 263, 510 7. 00 39, 724, 132 39,724. 132

152, 786, 633 152, 786633

On December 17, 2018, the Extraordinary General Assembly of shareholders allowed holders of Series
C" preferred shares to redeem their shares.
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The above shares are Tier I Non-Cumulative Perpetual Redeemable preferred shares at an issue price of

USD100 per share with a nominal value of LBP1, 000 each.

The preferred shares may be redeemed during the 60 days period following the annual general meeting
held to approve the financial statements after 5 years for the related issue date for Series D and E

respectively and each subsequent year thereafter.

In the event of liquidation of the Bank, holders ofpreferred shares series" D" and" E" rank senior to the

holders of common shares.

25.  TREASURY SHARES

As mentioned under Note 1 to the accompanying financial statements and in conjunction with the sale
of USB Bank PLC, the Bank bought-back 10% of its own shares that were owned by Sehanoui Holding
in an aggregate amount LBP76billion (USD43million and EUR6.5million).

26.  RESERVES

December 31,

2019 2018

LBP' UUU LBP' 000

Legal reserve( a)  26, 852, 521 20,736,533

Special reserve for loans and advances (b) 7, 303,478 4,803,478

Non-distributable reserve( c) 164,000,340 150,488, 120

Regulatory reserve for assets acquired in satisfaction

198, 156,339 176, 028, 131

of loans( Note 12)      64,981, 187 62, 192, 827

1
263, 137, 526 238,220,958

a)    The legal reserve is constituted in conformity with the requirements of the Lebanese Money and
Credit Law on the basis of 10% of the yearly net profits. This reserve is not available for
distribution.

b)   Based on Central Bank of Lebanon Circular 73 and Banking Control Commission memo 12/ 2010
relating to reserve allocation for doubtful debts,  the Bank has allocated an amount of
LBP7.3billion ( LBP4.8billion as at December 31, 2018) to special reserve for the uncovered

portion of its doubtful debts outstanding as at June 30, 2003 and not yet resolved.

c)    In compliance with article 16 of the basic circular no. 143 issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon,
during 2018 the Bank transferred the reserve for general banking risks and the general reserve for
performing loans to a non-distributable reserve account.
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27.  DIVIDENDS PAID

The Bank' s General Assembly held on May 15, 2019 resolved to distribute preferred shares earnings inthe amount of LBP10.3billion.

The Bank' s General Assembly held on May 31, 2018 resolved to distribute preferred shares earnings inthe amount of LBP11. 2billion.

28.  INTEREST INCOME

This caption consists of the following:
2019

Interest Withheld
Income Tax Total

Interest income from:
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Deposits with Central Bank
127,014,782     ( 12, 759,232)    114,255,550Deposits with banks and financial institutions 613,389Deposits with a related bank 20, 066) 593,323

Loan to a bank
84,955 84,955

Investment securities ( excluding FVTPL
61, 093 61, 093

Loans and advances to customers
190 066 874    ( 9, 826, 800)    180,240,074
188, 328,Loans and advances to related parties 188, 328,299

267, 101 267, 114101
506,430493     ( 22,606,098)    483, 830,395

2018
Interest Withheld
Income Tax Total

Interest income from:
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Deposits with Central Bank
91, 344,438Deposits with banks and financial institutions 1, 47

6, 385,537)     84,

479,455Deposits with a related bank
435 1, 41, 4   ,,

333to a bank
52,333 522, 33333

3

Investment securities( excluding FVTPL) 
75,714     (       5, 472)   70,242

Loans and advances to customers
205, 104, 978     ( 7, 845, 897)    197,259,081

Loans and advances to related parties

177,247, 122 177,247, 122
433, 1055 433, 105

475, 737. 145     ( 14,236.906)    461, 500,239

Interest income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is included under" Net interest andother gain/( loss) on investment securities at fair value through profit or loss"( Note 32).
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29.  INTEREST EXPENSE

IThis caption consists of the following:
2019 2018

I LBP' 000 LBP' 000
Interest expense on:

Deposits and borrowings from banks 10, 174,458 2,376,343

I Deposits from Parent Bank 5, 812,673 626,802
Revolving loans and facilities granted

from Central Bank of Lebanon 3, 722,044 4, 126,078

I Customers' accounts 378,406,771 317,896, 398
Customers' accounts - related parties 3, 877,433 2, 851, 963
Lease liabilities( Note 13) 1, 844, 185

IOtherborrowings 117, 188 142, 062

403, 954,752 328, 019,646

30.  FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

IThis caption consists of the following:

2019 2018

ILBP'000 LBP' 000

Commission on documentary credits 1, 111, 819 1, 410,349
ICommission on letters of guarantee 1, 730,308 1, 698,980

Commission on transactions with banks 94,554 104,947
Service fees on customers' transactions 11, 517,611 9,649,057

I Commission on loans and advances 9, 108, 524 11, 095,275
Commission earned on insurance policies 4,258, 923 4, 868,495
Commissions on capital market customers' transactions (Note 38)   504,626 525,464

1 Other 699, 027 1, 310,854

29,025, 392 30,663, 421

31.  FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

I
This caption consists of the following:

2019 2018

I
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Brokerage fees 96, 502 799,932

I
Commission on transactions with banks and financial institutions 710,655 672,974
Commission paid to car dealers 227,537 884,701
Other 1, 250,360 864,207

2,285, 054 3, 221, 814

I
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32.  NET INTEREST AND OTHER GAIN / (
LOSS) ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT FAIR VALUETHROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Interest income( net of withheld tax)
Dividends received

591, 614 4, 167,064

Net unrealized loss 429,627 430,386

Net realized gain/( loss) 
222, 343) (   51, 346)

17,228  (   18,694)
816, 126 4,527,410

33.  OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Dividend income from investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange gain
1, 683, 956 1, 718,980

Miscellaneous income
531, 429 1, 835,975

1, 036,557 2,282, 645
3, 251, 942

34.  STAFF COSTS

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Salaries

Board of directors' remunerations
41, 772,777 40,506,227

Social security contributions
2, 000,691 2, 549,978

490Provision for staff end-of-service indemnities ( Note 22)      
6, 571, 776

437
577, 7733 22Other staff benefits and costs 557878, 4744

14,351, 607 15,330,528

65,284,814 x,455,554
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I
35.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

I
2019 2018

ILBP'000 LBP' 000

Fees and taxes 1, 310,660 1, 622,203
Rent and building services 672,775 4,062, 352ILegal and professional fees 3, 099,324 3, 106, 983
Telephone and postage 1, 193, 410 1, 299,525
Maintenance and repairs 6,641, 930 6,659,930

IElectricity and water 907,961 971, 606
Heat, light and power 734,247 770,234
Insurance

704,457 667,635

I Advertising and publicity 2,691, 395 4,394,256
Public relations and entertainment 624,291 494,475
Printing and stationery 513, 307 546,616ISubscriptions 1, 890, 302 1, 613,056
Travel

281, 892 744, 163
Donations 1, 030 15, 933

I Software implementation fees 61, 900 117, 937
Credit card expenses 1, 456,463 899,697

IMoneytransport 1, 314,275 798,414
Cleaning 801, 099 795,433
Guards expenses 491, 983 600,219

I
Miscellaneous expenses 1, 483, 764 1, 806,384

26, 876,465 31, 987,051

Legal and professional fees include an amount of LBP226million representing various services provided
by the parent bank during 2019 and 2018.

I36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISKS

I The guarantees and standby letters of credit and the documentary and commercial letters of credit
represent financial instruments with contractual amounts representing credit risk. The guarantees and
standby letters ofcredit represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the event

I that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties and are not different from loans and advances
on the statement of financial position. However, documentary and commercial letters of credit which
represent written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw

I drafts on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by
the underlying shipment documents ofgoods to which they relate and, therefore, have significantly less
risks.

IForward exchange contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 represent positions held for
customers' accounts. The Group entered into such instrument to serve the needs ofcustomers, and these

Icontracts are fully hedged by the Group.

1
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37.  FIDUCIARY ACCOUNTS

Fiduciary deposits include deposits invested in back- to-back lending and are related to resident lendersand borrowers in addition to fiduciary deposits held or invested on behalf of the Group' s customers ona non- discretionary basis. The risks and rewards of the related operations belong to the account holders.
38.  ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Assets under management represent the total assets of BLC Income Fund 1 amounting toLBP 14.3billion whereby the Group acts as the fund manager. Management fees equivalent to 1% of theaverage net asset value of the fund paid during 2019 amounted to LBP 175million ( LBP 126millionduring 2018) are recorded under" Commissions earned on capital market customers' transactions"( Note30). The Founder and Manager of the Fund( BLC Bank S. A.L.) ceased the activities of the Fund on itsmaturity on October 7, 2019 and liquidated it on October 8, 2019.

39.  CASH AND CASH E UNALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows consist of the following:g
December 31

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Cash on hand
Deposits with Central Bank( excluding compulsory

deposits17,
650,581 33, 200,339

Term placements with Central Bank 119, 955,645 26,935,396

with original maturity of less than 3 months)
Purchased checks 82, 158, 751 126, 630,000
Current accounts with correspondents

10,434 496,981
Current accounts with related banks and financial institutions

37,354,469 219, 754,019
Current accounts with the parent bank

952,223 644,433
Term placements with correspondents

2, 115, 671 3, 545, 626

with original maturity of less than 3 months)Term placements with a related party 43, 118,250

with original maturity of less than 3 months)
17,269 gap

260 197. 774 0.174
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Major non- cash transactions excluded from the statement of cash flows for the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows:
a.    Adjustment of right-of-use assets in the amount of LBP25billion against other assets in the amount

of LBP2billion and lease liability in the amount of LBP23billion upon the initial application of
IFRS 16 in 2019.

b.    Adjustment of provision for risk and charges the amount of LBP1. 18billion against retained
earnings during the year ended December 31, 2019.

c.    Negative change in fair value of investments as at fair value through other comprehensive income
ofLBP 195million and related deferred tax liability of LBP89million( Negative change in fair value
of LBP779million and related deferred tax liability of LBP57million during 2018).

d.    Assets and investment properties acquired in satisfaction of loans in the amount of LBP 1. 05billion
LBP 1. 54billion in 2018).

e.    Transfer of LBP 141 million from property and equipment to intangible assets ( LBP99million in
2018).

f.    Net transfers from investments held at amortized cost and investments at fair value through profit
or loss in the amount of LBP93bi11ion and LBP2Obillion respectively, to investments at fair value

1 through other comprehensive income in the amount of LBP113billion in 2018.
g.    Deferred charges in the amount of LBP7.8billion were written-off against interest income in the

amount of LBP9billion in 2018.

h.    Transfer of LBP4.2billion from regulatory deferred contribution to provision for risks and charges
in 2018.

1
40.   COLLATERAL GIVEN

The carrying values of financial assets given as collateral are as follows:

December 31,
2019 2018

Corresponding Facilities
Amount of

Amount of
Pledged Maturity amount of Pledged
Assets Date Facility Nature of F.: lea t Assets

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Certificates of deposit issued by
the Central bank of Lebanon 7,943,789 June 9, 2029 29,537,516 Facilities from Central 6,292,235

Bank of Lebanon

Lebanese treasury bills 15, 219,300 Revolving 353,989,431 Facilities from Central 56,246,230
Bank of Lebanon
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41.  RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to various types of risks, some of which are:

Credit risk: the risk of default or deterioration in the ability of a borrower to repay a loan.
Liquidity risk: the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations when they come due ina timely manner and at reasonable cost.

Market risk: the risk of loss in balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising from movementsin market prices. Movements in market prices include changes in interest rates ( including creditspreads), exchange rates and equity prices.

A.  Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resultingin financial loss to the Group. The Group' s main income generating activity is lending to customers andtherefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit risk mainly arises from loans and advances to customersand other banks ( including related commitments to lend such as loan or credit card facilities) andinvestments in Government debt securities, certificates ofdeposit issued by the Central Bank ofLebanonand term deposits with the Central Bank of Lebanon. The Group considers all elements of credit risk
exposure such as counterparty default risk, geographical risk and sector risk for risk managementpurposes.

Credit risk management

The Group' s Risk Management committee is responsible for managing the Group' s credit risk by:
Overseeing the risk management function as a whole.

Ensuring that adequate policies and procedures governing the work ofthe risk management function
exist at all levels, are up- to-date at all times, and ensure the proper and timely identification of risksthat may put the capital of the bank at risk.

Ensuring full compliance with laws and regulations related to risk management.
Following up on corrective measures proposed by the risk management function and approved bythe risk management committee.

Overseeing the work of sub- committees especially when it comes to policies and procedures.
Relaying to the board ofdirectors its assessment on the adequacy ofthe risk management frameworkas a whole.
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Reviewing the risk reports making sure to relay to the board of directors in due time identified risks
that may require a prompt attention/ action.

Validating all Risk related Policies, Business Continuity Policies, the Internal Capital Adequacy.
Assessing the Recovery Plan Framework and the Impairment Framework before submission to the
BOD for approval.

Ensuring that the Bank risk appetite and limits are properly understood and duly approved by BOD
Reviewing and following up the audit findings related to the risk management function

1 Ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures in place to appropriately maintain and validate
models used to assess and measure ECL.

Developing and maintaining the Group' s risk grading to categories exposures according to the
degree of risk of default. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews.

Establishing a sound credit risk accounting assessment and measurement process that provides it
with a strong basis for common systems, tools and data to assess credit risk and to account for ECL.
Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice throughout
the Group in the management of credit risk.

I
The internal audit function performs regular audits making sure that the established controls and
procedures are adequately designed and implemented.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3 the Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to impairment
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group will measure the loss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12- month ECL.

In order to minimize credit risk, the Group has tasked its risk management committee to develop and
maintain the Group' s credit risk grading to categorize exposures according to their degree of risk of
default.  The Group' s credit risk grading framework comprises ten categories.  The credit rating
information is based on a range of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and
applying experienced credit judgement. The nature of the exposure and type of borrower are taken into
account in the analysis. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are
indicative of risk ofdefault.
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The credit risk grades are designed and calibrated to reflect the risk ofAs the credit risk increases the difference in risk of default between grades

changt
as

ees. riskexosuredeteriorates.allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition, based on the available

informationEach
exposure

isecounterparty. All exposures are monitored and the credit risk grade is updated to eflecaboutr
the

information. The monitoring procedures followed are both general and tailored to theThe following data are typically used to monitor the Group' s exposures:

current

type ofexposure.

Payment record, including payment ratios and ageing analysis;
Extent of utilization of granted limit;
Forbearances( both requested and granted);
Changes in business, financial and economic conditions;
Credit rating information supplied by external rating agencies;

For retail exposures: internally generated data of customer behaviour, affordabilitycorporate exposures: information obtained byew metrics etc.; and forfinancial statements review, market data such as pricesof credit default

swapsof
p  (

CDS)

r files

or

quotedoaudited
where available, changes in the financial sector the customer operates etc. 

or bonds

The Group uses credit risk grades as a primary input into the determination of the term structurePD for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information aboutcredit
the

t

exposures analyzed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and borrower as well as b
riskriskgrading. The information used is both internal and external depending on

theportfolioY
redi.

grades to externall ratings.

table below provides a mapping of the Group' s internal credit risk
assessed.

Central Bank of Central Bank of Lebanon Moody' s Mood  ' s Description
Risk Ratin. Descri. tion Gradin.11 Normal

1 — 4
Follow u s Excellent— Satisfacto

Follow u. and re_  larization

MIIIIEIIIIIIII6
Ades uate— Mar:.inal

4
Substandard Vulnerable

IIIIIIIIIMIIIIIIIII Doubtful
8

Substandard
Doubtful

6
Loss

10
Loss

The Group analyses all data collected using statistical models and estimates the remainingof exposures and how these are expected to change over time. The factors taken in
lifetime PDprocess include macro- economic, mainly Real GDPgrowth.   to account in thisof the future direction of relevant economic variables as ll as a representative

ranroup
generates a

ge of

case'

chscenario
forecast scenarios. The Group then uses these forecasts, which are probability-weighted,

ofother dossibteestimates of PDs.    
to adjust its

The Group presumes for retail loans that the credit risk on a financial asset has increasedsince initial recognition when contractual paymentse significantlyhas reasonable and supportable information thdemonstrates otherwise.more than 30 days past due unless the Group
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Incorporation of forward- looking information

The ECL model contains a three- stage approach which is based on the change in credit quality of
financial assets since initial recognition. The ECL model is forward- looking and requires the use of
reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions in the determination of significant
increases in credit risk and measurement of ECL.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:
probability of default( PD);

1
loss given default (LGD); and

Exposure at default( EAD).

Commercial and retail lending

As explained above these figures are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and
other historical data and they are adjusted to reflect probability- weighted forward- looking information.

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a point in
time. The calculation is based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating tools tailored to the
various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on market data
where available), as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs are

estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures. The estimation is based on current
conditions, adjusted to take into account estimates of future conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
any collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts of future collateral valuation
taking into account sale discounts, time to realization of collateral, cross-collateralization and seniority
of claim, cost of realization of collateral and cure rates ( i.e. exit from non-performing status). LGD
models for unsecured assets consider time of recovery, recovery rates and seniority of claims. The
calculation is on a discounted cash flow basis, where the cash flows are discounted by the original EIR
of the loan.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date,  including repayments of principal and interest,  and expected
drawdowns on committed facilities. The Group' s modelling approach for EAD reflects expected
changes in the balance outstanding over the lifetime of the loan exposure that are permitted by the
current contractual terms, such as amortization profiles, early repayment or overpayment, changes in
utilization of undrawn commitments and credit mitigation actions taken before default. The Group uses
EAD models that reflect the characteristics of the portfolios.

1
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The Group measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
including extension options) over which the entity is exposed to credit risk and not a longer period,

even if contract extension or renewal is common business practice. However, for exposures such as
credit cards, revolving credit facilities and overdraft facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn
commitment component, the Group' s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn
commitment does not limit the Group' s exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period. For
such exposures the Group measures ECL over the period that it is exposed to credit risk and ECL would
not be mitigated by credit risk management actions; even if that period extends beyond the maximum
contractual period. These exposures do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and have a shortcontractual cancellation period.

However, the Group does not enforce in the normal day-to-day management the contractual right to
cancel these exposures. This is because these exposures are managed on a collective basis and are
canceled only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at the facility level.
This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Groupexpects to take to mitigate ECL, e.g. reduction in limits or cancellation of the loan commitment.

Groupings based on shared risks characteristics

When ECL are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis ofproduct type.

The groupings are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that each group is comprised of homogenousexposures.

Credit Risk monitoring and review

During 2019, the severe and unprecedented economic situation in Lebanon exerted significant pressure
on the asset quality of the domestic loan portfolio. As a result, credit quality of the Lebanese loan
portfolio has declined driven by a weakening in the borrowers' creditworthiness across various segmenttypes.

The above deterioration in the credit quality of the loans' portfolio in Lebanon was intensified in the
subsequent period as a result of the massive and devastating explosion that occurred on August 4, 2020
and which resulted in the destruction of thousands of residential units and businesses in downtown
Beirut as well as the eastern side of the capital leaving thousands of citizens homeless and/or jobless.
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I
Maximum exposure to credit risk

Il.
The following corresponds to the maximum credit risk exposure netp of the expected credit loss
allowances:

IDecember31, 2019

Gross Carrying
Amount

I Including
Accrued Expected Net Carrying
Interest)   Credit Losses Amount

ILBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Deposits with Central Bank( Note 5)       1, 942,715,601   ( 1, 094, 154)       1, 941, 621, 447

I
Deposits with banks and financial

institutions( Note 6)     41, 481, 815   (   123,088)  41, 358,727
Loan to a bank( Note 7)    2, 118,288   (    40,036)    2, 078,252
Loans and advances to customers( Note 8) 2, 251, 320,299   (      179, 719,312)      2,071, 600,987

1 Investment securities at amortized cost( Note 9) 2,253, 582,485   (       39, 770,249)      2,213, 812,236
Investment securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income( Note 9)       98,279,431   (   783, 551)  97,495,880
ICustomers' liability under

acceptances 28,332, 312   (   344,264)  27,988,048
6,617,830,231   (     221, 874,654) _  6,395,955,577

IFinancial Guarantees and other commitments 113, 621, 468   (   364, 844) _       113, 256,624

IDecember31, 2018

Gross Carrying
Amount

I Including
Accrued Expected Net Carrying
Interest)    Credit Losses Amount

ILBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Deposits with Central Bank( Note 5)       1, 611, 662, 121   ( 6, 893, 673)       1, 604,768, 448

I
Deposits with banks and financial

institutions( Note 6)    289, 196,707   (   635, 023) 288,561, 684
Loan to a bank( Note 7)    2, 822,412   (     65, 409)    2,757,003

I
Loans and advances to customers( Note 8) 2, 566,206,241   (      143, 544,002)      2,422, 662,239
Investment securities at amortized cost( Note 9) 2,594,499,412   (       20,061, 518)      2,574,437, 894
Investment securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income( Note 9)     114,632,790   ( 1, 123, 916) 113, 508, 874

I Customers' liability under acceptances 32,326,606   (   386,760)  31, 939,846
7,211, 346,289   (      172. 710,301)      7,038, 635, 988

IFinancial Guarantees and other commitments 128, 700, 167   (   413,141.) 128,; 86 426

I
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I
I1.1) Balances with Central Bank

Changes in carrying amounts of balances with Central Bank that contributed to changes in loss
Iallowance are detailed as follows:

Stage 1 12- month ECL
December 31,

1 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

IGross carrying amount, January 1 1, 594,221, 577 1, 240,693, 246
New financial assets originated or purchased 1, 059, 131, 236 1, 058, 743, 750

1
Net change in the carrying value of existing deposits 101, 407,672 6,278, 831
Financial assets that have been derecognised 843, 295, 376)    (   711, 494,251)
Gross carrying amount, December 31 1, 911, 465, 109 1, 594,221, 576
Accrued interest receivable 31, 250,492 17,440,545

1 1, 942,715, 601 1, 611, 662, 121

IMovement of loss allowance on balances with Central Bank is detailed as follows:

Stage 1 12- month ECL

I December 31,

2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

ILoss allowance, January 1 6,893,673 4, 840,760
New financial assets originated or purchased 472,901 5, 330,679
Net change due to increase/decrease in

Icredit risk and change in balance 3, 171, 231)    (   27, 177)
Financial assets that have been derecognised 3, 100,492)    (       3, 250 589)
Effect of exchange rate changes 697)
Loss allowance, December 31 1, 094, 154 6, 893, 673

I
1. 2) Deposits with banks andfinancial institutions

Changes in carrying amounts of deposits with banks and financial institutions that contributed to

I
changes in loss allowance

Stage 1 12- month ECL
December 31,

I 2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Gross carrying amount, January 1 289, 191, 961 151, 254, 169
Changes due to modifications that did not result in derecognition   (  189,020,842)  93, 641, 648
New financial assets originated or purchased 5, 200,029 76,738,640

I
Financial assets that have been derecognised 63, 889,333)    (     32,442,496)
Gross carrying amount, December 31 41, 481, 815 289, 191, 961
Accrued interest receivable 4, 746

I 41, 481, 815 289, 196, 707
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The movement of expected credit loss allowance on deposits with banks and financial institutions isdetailed as follows:

Stage 1 12- month ECL
December 31,

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Loss allowance, January 1
635,023New financial assets originated or purchased

850, 195

43Net change due to increase/decrease
8,490 419,243

in credit risk and change in balance
17,519) 39,472Financial assets that have been derecognised

Effect of exchange rate changes
415, 561)    ( 673, 887)

Loss allowance, December 31
87,345)       

123, 088 635,023

1. 3) Loan to a bank

Changes in carrying amounts of loan to a bank that contributed to changes in loss allowance
Stage 1 12- month ECL

December 31,
2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Gross carrying amount, January 1
2, 800,000Financial assets that have been derecognized 3, 500,000

Gross carrying amount, December 31
700,000)    ( 700,000)

Accrued interest receivable
2, 100,000 2, 800,000

18,288• 22,412
2, 118.288     ___   ,, 822,1L2_

The movement of expected credit loss allowance on loan to a bank is detailed as follows:

Stage 1 12- month ECL
December 31,

2019 2018
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Loss allowance, January 1
65,409 85Net change due to change in balance l O l

19Loss allowance, December 31
25,373)    (   19,692)
40,036 65,409
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I
1. 4) Loans and advances to customers:

IThe allocation of loans and advances to customers bygrade to their respective stage is presented as
follows:

I

I
December 31, 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL Total
ILBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'000

BDL Rating 1- 2: low to fair risk 1, 642, 115,706 99, 109,895 1, 741, 225,601IBDL Rating 3: Monitoring 4,966,596 233, 318,361 238, 284,957
BDL Rating 4: Substandard 64,529,283 64, 529,283
BDL Rating 5: Doubtful 137, 841, 162 137, 841, 162

111 BDL Rating 6: Impaired
Total gross carrying amount

45, 857,430 45, 857,430
1, 647,082,302 332,428,256 248,227, 875 2, 227,738,433

Loss allowance 13, 495,930)   ( 46,931, 522) (  119,291, 860)(   179,719,312)

I Carrying Amount 1, 633, 586,372 285,496,734 128, 936,015 2, 048, 019, 121
Accrued interest receivable

23, 581, 866

I
2,071, 600,987

I
December 31, 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

I
ECL ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

BDL Rating 1- 2: low to fair risk 2, 093, 970,052 34,648, 560 3, 615, 607 2, 132,234,219
BDL Rating 3: Monitoring 4, 112, 178 170,362, 331 174,474,509
BDL Rating 4: Substandard 67,245,061 67,245,061

I
BDL Rating 5: Doubtful 126,815, 155 126, 815, 155
BDL Rating 6: Impaired 44,461, 772 44,461, 772
Total gross carrying amount 2, 098,082,230 205,010, 891 242, 137,595 2,545,230,716

I
Loss allowance

Carrying Amount
6, 384,035)   ( 12, 287,004) (  124,872,963)(   143, 544, 002)

2,091, 698, 195 192, 723, 887 117,264,632 2, 401, 686, 714
Accrued interest receivable

20,975, 525

I 2,422,662,239

I

I
77



Changes in carrying amounts of loans to customers ( excluding accrued interest) that contributed tochanges in loss allowance is detailed as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL Total
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP1000

Gross carrying amount as at January 1, 2019 2,098, 082,230 205,010,891 242, 137,595 2, 545, 230,716Changes in gross carrying amount:
Transfer to Stage 1

11, 994,610  (     9, 848, 869)  (     2, 145, 741)Transfer to Stage 2
172, 771, 488)    175, 164, 300   (    2, 392,812)Transfer to Stage 3

8, 056,624) (   21, 154, 072)      29,210, 696Changes due to modifications that
did not result in derecognition 563, 731, 856) (   75,086,997)New financial assets originated

22,005, 783)  (   660, 824,636)293, 848,086 58, 771, 218 8, 015, 659 360,634,963Financial assets that have been derecognized      (   12, 282, 656) (       428,215Gross 4,591, 739)  (     17,302,610)carrying amount as at
December 31, 2019 1, 647,082, 302 332,428,256 248, 227,875 2, 227,738 433

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL Total
LBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

Gross carrying amount as at January 1, 2018 2, 079,316, 751 150,575, 827 246, 192, 485 2,476,085, 063Changes in gross carrying amount:
Transfer to Stage 1

18, 849,306  (   17, 291, 038)  (     1, 558,268)Transfer to Stage 2
70,056,203)      74, 534,571   (     4,478,368)Transfer to Stage 3
11, 425,373) (   10,513, 885)      21, 939,258Changes due to modifications that did not

result in derecognition 204,866,681) (   15, 167, 746)  (     4,545,424)New financial assets originated 624,

402,
928566,515,683 49,597,557 8, 289, 688 624,402, 928Financial assets that have been derecognized       ( 280,251, 253) (   26,724,395)  (   23, 701, 776)  (   330, 677,424)Gross carrying amount as at

December 31, 2018
2, 09: 082,230 205,010_891 242, 137, 595 2, 545 230, 716

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL Total
LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000 I, B P' 000

Loss allowance as at January 1, 2019 6,384,035 12, 287,004 124,872,963 143, 544,002Changes in the loss allowance:
Transfer to Stage 1 99,716  (       92,520)  (  .       7, 196)Transfer to Stage' 2 20,341, 502)    20,444,542Transfer to Stage 3 103, 040)   

3, 026, 104) (   6,765,843) 9, 791, 947Net change due to increase/decrease in
credit risk and change in balance 29,576,733 9,505, 960 1 26,030, 106New financial assets originated 926,824 11, 801, 769 2, 708,267 15,436, 860Financial assets that have been derecognized   (     73, 129) (     245,905)Transfer to off-balance sheet

75, 114) (      394, 148)
Write-offs 3, 026,048) (    3, 026,048)

50,643) ( 3, 485)  (    1, 799, 773) (    1, 853, 901)Effect of exchange rate changes
17,Loss allowance as at December 31, 2019 13,495,930 46,931, 522 119, 291, 860) ( 179,719, 312)
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IStage1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

I ECL ECL ECL Total
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Loss allowance as at January 1, 2018 6, 110, 197 8, 308, 165 140,013, 228 154,- 131. 590
Changes in the loss allowance:

Transfer to Stage 1 61, 303  (       58,246)  (  3, 057)   
Transfer to Stage 2 4,393, 300)     4,595,380   (       202,080)   
Transfer to Stage 3 4,498, 770) (   3, 626,246) 8, 125, 016

Net change due to increase/decrease in
credit risk and change in balance 8, 645, 228 1, 982,861    (    8, 139,065)       2, 489,024

New financial assets originated 1, 635, 671 2, 551, 327 4,916,288 9, 103, 286
Financial assets that have been derecognized   ( 1, 176,294) (   1, 433, 156)  (   13, 463,303) (   16,072, 753)
Transfer to off-balance sheet 4,987,803) (    4, 987, 803)

I Write-offs 33, 022)  (     1, 340,826) (    1, 373, 848)
Effect of exchange rate changes 59)  ( 45,435) ( 45, 494)
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2018 6, 384,035 12,287,004 124, 872, 963  _ 143,544 002

1 1. 5) Investment securities

I Investment securities are mainly concentrated with the Lebanese public sector.

The movement of investment securities ( excluding accrued interest) classified at amortized cost during
I 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019
L B P F/CY Total

ILBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Balance, January 1 1, 133, 189, 598 1, 409,203, 776 2,542, 393, 374
Acquisition 3, 768,750 3, 768, 750
Swaps 6, 000,000     ( 71, 154,000)    ( 65, 154, 000)
Redemption upon maturity 153, 081, 074)    ( 81, 119, 858)    (      234,200,932)
Sale

26,230,500)    ( 26, 230, 500)

I
Amortization of discount/premium 925,742)    (      52, 159)    (   977,901)
Change in the unamortized discount/premium       (     193, 831)  647,303 453, 472
Balance, December 31 984,988, 951 1, 235,063, 312     _  2, 220,052, 263

I2018
LBP F/CY Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 L B P' 000

IBalance,January 1 1, 382,405, 598 1, 637, 147, 150 3, 019,552, 748
Initial adoption of IFRS9 101, 164, 133)    ( 98, 846, 774)    (      200,010,907)
Reclassifications 54,974,710 52, 020, 810 106,995,520IAcquisition 31, 000,000 46,732, 500 77, 732,500
Swaps 26,027,490     ( 19, 296, 000)      6, 731, 490
Redemption upon maturity 262, 800,000)    ( 53, 945, 888)    (      316,745, 888)

I
Sale

153, 385, 746)    (       153, 385, 746)
Amortization of discount/ premium 1, 373,306)  115,028     ( 1, 258, 278)
Change in the unamortized discount/premium 4,119, 239     (   1, 337,304)      2, 781, 935
Balance, December 31 1, 133, 189, 598 1, 409,. a e 2, 542,393,374
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The movement of investment securities at fair value through other comprehensive income ( excludingaccrued interest) during 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019
LBP F/CY Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Balance, January 1 61, 376, 141 50,667,665 112,043, 806Sale
1, 557)    (      1, 557)Redemption upon maturity 3, 000,000)    ( 12, 060,000)    (       15, 060, 000)Change in fair value 513,388) 318, 829     (  194, 559)Amortization of discount/premium 170,740)    (     91, 477)    (  262, 217)Change in the unamortized discount/premium 24,774 24, 774Balance, December 31 57,716, 787 38, 833, 460 96, 550,247

2018
LBP F/CY Total

LBl000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Balance, January 1 14,318, 131 1, 119,962 15, 438, 093Initial adoption of IFRS9 53,592, 132 66,727,980 120, 320, 112Reclassifications 7,402,710)       7,402,710)Swaps
2,560,000)

Sale 2, 560,000)

Redemption upon maturity
3, 370)    (     3, 370)

13, 513, 230)    (      13, 513,230)Change in fair value 3, 279,436     ( 4,058, 131)    (  778, 695)Amortization of discount/premium 46, 886)    (     96,072)    (  142, 958)Change in the unamortized discount/premium 196,038 490,526 686,564Balance, December 31 61, 376, 141 50,667,665 112, 043, 806

The movement of expected credit loss allowance for investments at amortized cost and investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income is as follows:

Stage 1- 12 months ECL
At Fair Value

At through Other
Amortized Comprehensive

Cost Income
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Loss allowance as at January 1, 2019 20,061, 518 1, 123,916New Financial assets purchased
281

Financial assets that have been derecognized 2,321, 750)
Net provision/(write back) due to change in credit risk 22,030,200 340,365)Loss allowance as at December 31, 2019 39, 770,249 783, 551
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I

I
Stage 1- 12 months ECL

I
At Fair Value

At through Other

Amortized Comprehensive

I
Cost Income

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

ILoss allowance as at January 1, 2018 25,487,882
New Financial assets purchased 2,715,412
Financial assets that have been derecognized 7, 161, 193)   
Net write back due to change in credit risk 486, 845)   
Reclassifications 493,738)       1, 123, 916
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2018 20,061, 518 1, 123, 916

I1.6) Customer' s liability under acceptances

I Customers' liability under acceptances represents facilities granted only for resident customers and are
classified as follows:

IDecember31 2019

I
Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL  _-    Total

LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

I
BDL Rating1- 2: low to fair risk 25, 555,566 25, 555, 566

IBDL Rating 3: Monitoring 2, 776, 746 2, 776,746
Total gross carrying amount 25, 555,566 2, 776, 746 28, 332,312
Loss allowance 188, 182)   (   156,082)     (      344,264)

I
Carrying amount 25, 367,384 2,620,664 27,988,048

I
December 31, 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

I
ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
BDL Rating 1- 2: low to fair risk 28,321, 761 28, 321, 761
BDL Rating 3: Monitoring 4,004,845 4,004, 845
Total gross carrying amount 28,321, 761 4,004,845 32,326, 606

I
Loss allowance 181, 202)   (   205, 558)     (      386,760)
Carrying amount 28, 140,559 3, 799,287 31, 939,846

I
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Changes in carrying amounts of customer liability under acceptance that contributed to changes in loss
allowance is detailed as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Gross carrying amount as at January 1, 2019 28, 321, 761 4,004, 845 32,326,606

Changes in gross carrying amount
of existing acceptances 8, 035,392)    (       663, 304) (    8, 698, 696)

New fmancial assets originated 7,275, 644 364,916 7,640,560
Financial assets that have been derecognized 2,006,447)    (       929,711) (    2, 936, 158)
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2019 25, 555, 566 2,776,746 28,332, 312

Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

Gross carrying amount as at January 1, 2018 53, 738, 042 1, 921, 354 55,659, 396

Changes in gross carrying amount
of existing acceptances 1, 611, 525)    (     921, 614) (   2, 533, 139)

New financial assets originated 21, 662,034 3, 075, 134 24,737, 168
Financial assets that have been derecognized 45,466,790)    (       70,029) ( 45, 536, 819)
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2018 28, 321, 761 4,004,845 32, 326,606

The movement of expected credit loss allowance on customer' s liability under acceptances is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Loss allowance as at January 1, 2019 181, 201 205, 559 386, 760
Net change due to change in balances

ofexisting acceptances 30, 508)    (       22,602) (       53, 110)
New financial assets originated 48, 369 18, 169 66,538
Financial assets that have been derecognized 7, 722)    (       45, 042) (       52, 764)
Effect of exchange rate changes 3, 160)     3, 160)
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2019 188, 180 156, 084 344,264
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1
Stage 1 Stage 2

I12-month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Loss allowance as at January 1, 2018 314,041 111, 577 425,618

INet change due to change in balances of

existing acceptances 1, 906)    (       62,407) (       64,313)

New financial assets originated 147, 173 160,516 307,689

IFinancial assets that have been derecognized 278, 107)    ( 4, 127) (     282,234)

Loss allowance as at December 31, 2018 181, 201 205, 559 386,760

ILoan commitments and financial guarantees are classified as follows:

IDecember31, 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2

I
12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

IBDL Rating 1- 2: low to fair risk 112, 596,241 112, 596,241

BDL Rating 3: Monitoring 1, 025, 227 1, 025, 227

I
Total gross carrying amount
Loss allowance

112,596,241 1, 025, 227 113, 621, 468

263, 359)   (      101, 485)  (     364,844)

Carrying amount 112, 332, 882 923, 742 113, 256,624

I
December 31, 2018

I
Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

ILBP'000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

BDL Rating 1- 2: low to fair risk 128,055, 914 128, 055,914

I
BDL Rating 3: Monitoring

128, 055,

914644,
253 644,253

Total gross carrying amount 644,253 128,700, 167

Loss allowance 380,272)    (       33,469)  (     413, 741)

I
Carrying amount 127,675, 642 610,784 128,286,426

I

I

I
83



Changes in carrying amounts of loan commitments that contributed to changes in loss allowance is
detailed as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12- month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Gross carrying amount as at January 1, 2019 128, 028, 606 671, 561 128, 700, 167
Changes of the balances of existing commitments (   10,372,975) (      61, 212)   10,434, 187)
New financial assets originated 17,715,498 511, 875 18, 227,373
Financial assets that have been derecognized      (  22,424,632) (     447,253)   22, 871, 885)
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2019 112, 946,497 674,971 113, 621, 468

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12- month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL Total

LBP'000.      LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 000

Gross carrying amount as at January 1, 2018 150, 762, 178 2, 216,230 76,445 153, 054, 853

Changes in gross carrying amount:
Transfer to Stage 1 91, 680  (      91, 680)   

Transfer to Stage 2 105, 334) 105,334
Changes of the balances of existing commitments (   17, 192, 186) (      50,006)   17, 242, 192)
New financial assets originated 57,746,570 476,672 58, 223, 242

Financial assets that have been derecognized      (  63,274,302) (   1, 984989) (   76,445) (    65, 335, 736)
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2018 128, 028,606 671, 561 128, 700, 167

Stage 1 Stage 2

12- month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP'000 LBP' 00()

Loss allowance as at January 1, 2019393,282 20,459 413, 741

Changes in the loss allowance:

Transfer to Stage 2 69,07 I)    69,071

Net change due to change in

credit risk and balances of existing commitments     (       10,840)    ( 3, 755) (       14, 595)

New commitments originated or purchased 58, 545 1, 501 60,046

Cancelled commitments 71, 211)    (       22,593) (       93, 804)

Effect of exchange rate changes 544)    544)

Loss allowance as at December 31, 2019 300, 161 64,683 364,844
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I
Stage 1 Stage 2

I12-month Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Loss allowance s at January 1, 2018 346,291 141, 673 487, 964

Changes in the loss allowance:

U Transfer to Stage 1 6, 581     ( 6, 581)  

Transfer to Stage 2 76)  76

I
Net change due to change in
credit risk and balances of existing commitments 17, 071     ( 5, 838)  11, 233

New commitments originated or purchased 148, 374 22, 916 171, 290

I
Cancelled commitments 124,959)    (      131, 787) (     256,746)

Loss allowance as at December 31, 2018 393,282 20,459 413, 741

IAllocation of carrying amount of loans and advances to customers by economic sector:

IDecember31,

2019 2018

I
LBP' 000 LBP' 000

Corporate:

Agriculture 45, 571, 117 55,251, 455

t
Commerce 432,058, 861 499,761, 759

Construction and real estate 456, 153, 968 496,563,483

Individual 76,849,091 88, 854,219

I Industrial 129, 931, 628 154,477,455

Public Sector 8,560, 925 8, 656,489

Services 128,717, 120 166,752,660

1
1, 277, 842, 710 1, 470,317, 520

Retail:

I
Retail loans 949,895, 723 1, 074,913, 196

Accrued interest receivable 23, 581, 866 20,975,525

2,251, 32 , 299 2, 566,206,241

I
Netting arrangements:

ITheGroup sometimes further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into netting arrangements
with counterparties. Netting arrangements reduce credit risk associated with favorable contracts to the

I extent that if a default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net
basis.

I

I
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The Group makes use ofmaster netting agreements and other arrangements not eligible for netting under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation with its counterparties. Such arrangements provide for single
net settlement of all financial instruments covered by the agreements in the event of default on any one
contract. Although, these master netting arrangements do not normally result in an offset of balance
sheet assets and liabilities ( as the conditions for offsetting under IAS 32 may not apply), they,
nevertheless, reduce the Group' s exposure to credit risk, as shown in the tables on the following pages.
Although master netting arrangements may significantly reduce credit risk, it should be noted that the
credit risk is eliminated only to the extent of amounts due to the same counterparty.

2.  Risk Mitigation Policies

The Group mainly employs collateral to mitigate credit risk. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are:

Pledged deposits

Mortgages over real estate properties ( land, commercial and residential properties)

Bank guarantees

Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks, except when securities are held as
part of a reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Collateral usually is not held against
investment securities.

3.  Financial assets with credit risk exposure and related concentrations

a) Exposure to credit risk and concentration by counterparty:

The tables below reflect the Group' s exposure to credit risk by counterparty segregated between the
categories ofdeposits with banks and financial institutions and loans and advances:      •

a..1)   Distribution ofdeposits with banks andfinancial institutions by brackets (excluding ECL):

December 31, 2019
Total Number of

Balance to Total Counterparties
LBP' 000

Less than LBP5billion 27, 162, 232 65 34
From LBP5billion to LBP 15billion 14,330, 017 35 I

41, 492,249 100 35

December 31, 2018
Total Number of

Balance to Total Counterparties
LBP' 000

Less than LBP5billion 22,975, 296 8 29
From LBP5billion to LBP 15billion 23, 508, 595 8 3
From LBPlSbillion to LBP3Obillion 58,811, 688 20 3
From LBP3Obillion to LBP50billion 184,398, 109 64 3

289,693, 688 100 38
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I
a.2) Loans and advances to customers are allocated asfollows by brackets( carrying amount excluding

Iexpected credit losses):

I December 31, 2019

Carrying of Total Number of

Amount Amount Counterparties

ILBP'000

Less than LBP500million 1, 062,054,445 48 47,625

From LBP500million to LBP5billion 551, 466,954 25 429

I From LBP5billion to LBP15billion 283,408,679 12 36

Above LBP15billion 330, 808, 355 15 11

2,227,738,433 100 48, 101

I
Accrued interest receivable 23, 581, 866

2, 251, 320,299

1 December 31, 2018

Carrying of Total Number of

Amount Amount Counterparties

ILBP'000

Less than LBP500million 1, 235,479,044 48 50,216

From LBP500million to LBP5billion 614,684, 132 24 473

I From LBP5billion to LBP15billion 369, 804,686 15 46

Above LBP15billion 325,262,854 13 10

2, 545,230,716 100 50, 745

I
Accrued interest receivable 20,975,525

2, 566,206,241

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
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I

Overdue but not impaired loans as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

I2019 2018

LBP' 000 LBP' 000

I
Between 60 and 90 days 82 361, 114 26,672 384Y

1
Between 90 and 180 days 128, 082,935 68,497,271

Between 180 and 360 days 30,990,525 4,916,520

Over 360 days 5,666, 167 7, 985,560

I
247, 100,741 108, 071, 735

a. 4)    Concentration ofmajorfinancial assets and liabilities by geographical location:

I
December 31, 2019

Middle East North

Lebanon and Africa America Europe Other Total

L131" 000 1. 131). 000 1. 111" 000 1. 13P' 000 I, 131'' 000 L131' 000

FINANCIAL ASSETS

I Cash and Central Bank 1, 959,272,028 1, 959 272,028

Deposits with banks and
financial institutions 2,591, 901 1, 663, 777 7, 330,279 29,783,204 41, 369, 161

Loan to a bank 2,078,252 2,078,252

I Investments at fair value

through profit or loss 20,497,682 15, 610,037 36, 107,719

Loans and advances to customers 1, 976,556,994 76,226,029 7, 204,781 8,486,450 3, 126,733 2,071, 600,987

Investments at amortized cost 2,213,812,236 2,213,812,236

I
Investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income 97.495.880 97.495.880

Total 6.272304.973 77.889. 806 14. 535.060 53.879,691 3, 126,733 6.421. 736.263

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks 112,012,965 46,305,237 15, 428,095 173, 746,297

I
Customers' accounts

Other borrowings
4,447,377, 184 619,755,599 67,575,714 130,128, 901 45, 674, 561 5,310,511, 959

347,425,980 400, 123 347,826, 103

Lease liability 22.065. 854 22,065. 854

Total 4.928.881. 983 666.460,959 67,575. 714 145, 556,996 45.674, 561 5. 854. 150.213

I

I

I
11189
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December 31, 2018

s1iddle East North

Lebanon and Africa America Europe Other Total

LBP' 000 I. BP' 000 LBP' 001) LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and Central Bank 1, 637,968,787 1, 637, 968,787

Deposits with banks and

financial institutions 4,766,774 4,426,039 17, 129, 723 261, 297,963 1, 438, 166 289,058,665

Loan to a bank 2,757,003 2, 757,003

Investments at fair value

through profit or loss 23,495,906 31, 970.337 55,466,243

Loans and advances to customers 2, 335,011, 501 69, 177,489 5,771, 896 10, 589,750 2, 111, 603 2,422,662,239

Investments at amortized cost 2, 574,437,894 2,574,437, 894

Investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income 113, 508,874 113. 508.874

Total 6.691, 946,739 73, 603. 528 22,901. 619 303.858,050 3, 549,769 7,095. 859.705

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks 75,867,856 45,442,402 27,846,751 149, 157, 009

Customers' accounts 4, 761, 801, 814 668,948,993 76,736,972 328, 839; 125 55,054,225 5,891, 381, 129

Other borrowings 399,942,046 4,518,362 404,460,408

Total 5, 237,611, 716 718,909,757 76.736,972 356,685,876 55,054225 6,444,998. 546

B.  Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity
risk can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of
funding to dry up immediately. That being said, Lebanon is facing adverse conditions and high level of
uncertainty since October 2019 and up to the date of the financial statements, as a result ofdeterioration
of the economic environment following the social unrest which lead to disruption of normal operations
ofmost business sectors and closure of the banking sector for a period of time during the last quarter of
2019, resulting in a de- facto capital control, leading to incremental credit risks and restricted access to
foreign currency among other adverse factors.

I.   Management ofliquidity risk

Liquidity management involves maintaining ample and diverse funding capacity, liquid assets and other
sources ofcash to accommodate fluctuations in asset and liability levels due to changes in their business
operations or unanticipated events. Through Assets and Liabilities Committee, the Board of Directors

is responsible for establishing the liquidity policy as well as approving operating and contingency
procedures and monitoring liquidity on an ongoing basis. The treasury department is responsible for
planning and executing their funding activities and strategy.

Liquidity management and business unit activities are managed consistent with a strategy of funding
stability, flexibility and diversity. It includes:

Day-to- day funding managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can
be met;

Maintenance of a portfolio of liquid and marketable assets;

Daily and forecast cash flow management;

Implementation of long-term funding strategies.

90



The cumulative impact of these various elements is monitored on at least monthlybybasis ALCO.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections. The starting point
for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial liabilities and the expected
collection data of the financial assets.

The Group relies on deposits from customers and on its own equity, as the primary sources of funding.

2.   Exposure to liquidity risk

Regulatory requirements

The Group ensures that it is in compliance with the liquidity limits in Lebanese Pound and foreign
currencies as established by the Central Bank of Lebanon.

The table below shows the allocation of major monetary liabilities based on the earliest possible
contractual maturity (undiscounted values). The expected maturities vary significantly from the
contractual maturities namely with regard to customers' deposits.

I

1

1
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I

I
Nlarkct Risk

The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will be
affected because of changes in market prices such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange and

Icredit spreads.

IExposure toforeign exchange risk:

Below is the carrying value ofassets and liabilities segregated by major currencies to reflect the Group' s
Iexposure to foreign currency exchange risk at year end:

December 31, 2019

LBP USD Euro GBP Other Total

1
LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

ASSETS

Cash and Central Bank 851, 700,744 1, 011, 909,044 94,930,594 731, 646 1, 959,272,028

Deposits with banks and Financial institutions 446,318 13. 190,071 20,016,368 2,337,216 5, 379, 188 41, 369, 161

I
Loan to a bank 2,078 252 2,078,252

Investments at fair value through profit or loss 5, 180, 551 25,405,282 5, 521, 886 36, 107,719

Loans and advances to customers 741, 377,916 1, 296,621, 101 35, 115, 221 4,660   (  1, 517,911)     2,071, 600, 987

Investments at amortized cost 992,897,494 1, 220,914,742 2,213, 812,236

I
Investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income 58,483, 730 38,942,718 69,432 97,495,880

Customers' liability under acceptances 15,349,432 10, 700,471 1, 938, 145 27,988,048

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans 11, 985,064 71, 990,977 83,976,041

I
Right-of-use assets 1, 726,879 20,615,833 6,881 22,349,593

Property and equipment 94,881, 950 94,881, 950

Intangible assets 4,618 351 4,618,351

Other assets 18, 122,224 12,659, 198 599,753 19,975 93,881 31, 495,031

Assets classified as held- for-sale 21. 732. 835 21. 732.835

Total Assets 2383,499,473 3. 727.598. 398 188,686,560 3,091497 5. 900, 184 6,708,778. 112

LIABILITIES

I Deposits from banks 111, 355,615 24,364,839 38,025,843 173, 746 297

Customers' accounts 1, 771, 846,930 3, 346,845,218 185,083,516 3, 062,938 3, 673, 357 5, 310,511, 959

Liability under acceptances 15, 591, 648 10,802, 519 1, 938, 145 28,332,312

Other borrowings 317, 888,463 29,937,640 347,826, 103

I
Lease liability 1, 801, 913 20 263,923 18 22,065,854

Other liabilities 45 215,672 20,683,604 372,931 494 11, 373 66 284,074

Provisions 18,648,628 617,501 1, 209,617 20,475,746

Liabilities directly associated with

I
assets classified as held for sale 769.393 769 393

Total Liabilities 2 266,757 221 3,458, 304,373 236,263,819 3, 063,432 5, 622, 893 5, 970,011, 738

Currency to be received 683,574 683,574

Currency to be delivered 590,412) 89.765)   (       680, 177)

I683.574   (      590.412)  89.765)     3. 397

Net assets 516.742,252 269.977,599   (   48. 167,671) 30,065 187,526 738.769.771

I

I

I
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December 31, 2018

LBP USD Euro GBP Other Total

LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000 LBP' 000

ASSETS

Cash and Central Bank 846,384,571 787,398,507 2,641252 1, 544,457 1, 637,968,787
Deposits with banks and Financial institutions 1, 388,000 67,202,885 207, 197, 103 4,867,395 8, 403282 289,058,665
Loan to a bank 2, 757,003 2, 757,003
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 5, 478,099 44,527,436 5, 460,708 55,466,243
Loans and advances to customers 929,937, 137 1, 478,852,351 15, 401, 815 140,495   (  1, 669, 559)     2,422,662,239
Investments at amortized cost 1, 163, 839,026 1, 410,598, 868 2,574,437, 894
Investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income 62, 168, 124 51, 269,760 70,990 113, 508,874
Customers' liability under acceptances 11, 709,001 18,499,484 1, 731, 361 31, 939,846
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans 12,352, 944 71, 508,402 83,861, 346

Property and equipment 89,895,039 89,895,039
Intangible assets 4,342, 575 4,342,575
Other assets 16,234,774 18, 305,274   (    8, 622,530) 41, 767 4,063 25,963, 348
Assets classified as held-for-sale L297,343,966 1, 297,343, 966
Total Assets 3, 134, 777,292 3, 941, 372,484 1, 537,992, 788 6,594, 114 8. 469. 147 8.629205.825

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks 22,243, 138 87,269,241 39,644,630 149, 157,009
Customers' accounts 2, 133, 718,438 3,433,602,744 311, 518,402 6,660,656 5, 880,889 5, 891, 381, 129
Liability under acceptances 11, 936, 107 18,650,633 1, 739,866 32,326.606
Other borrowings 374,220,800 30,239,608 404,460,408
Other liabilities 47,975,207 30,517,639 423, 167 5,868 11, 113 78,932,994
Provisions 19,588,524 337,914 19,926,438

Liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale 1, 172,758,271 1. 172,758,271

Total Liabilities 2, 597.746. 107 3,593.903, 253 1, 542,995, 103 6,666,524 7, 631. 868 7,748,942,855

Currency to be received 10,080,373 11, 091, 739 10, 330,267 31, 502,379

Currency to be delivered 18, 668, 145)   (    2,467,695) 10.330,214)   (    31, 466,054)

8. 587, 772) 8. 624,044 53 36325

Net assets 537.031, 185 338,881, 459 3,621329   (    72,410)       837,332 880,299295

The Group is subject to currency risk on financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies
other than the Lebanese Pound. Most of these financial assets and liabilities are in US Dollars and Euros.

As disclosed in Note 1, the Group' s assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are valued at the official
exchange rate, whereas there is high volatility and significant variance in the multiple unofficial
exchange rates in the parallel markets that have emerged since the start of the economic crisis and the

de- facto capital control on foreign currency withdrawals and transfers overseas,  and therefore,
management is unable to determine what would be a reasonable possible movement in order to provide

useful quantitative sensitivity analysis. The impact of the valuation of these assets and liabilities at a
different rate will be recognized in the financial statements once the official exchange rate is changed

by the relevant authorities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents exposures to instruments whose values vary with the level of volatility of
interest rates. These instruments include, but are not limited to, loans, debt securities, certain trading-
related assets and liabilities, deposits, borrowings and derivative instruments. Interest rate repricing gap
is used to estimate the impact on earnings of an adverse movement in interest rates.
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D.  Other Operational Risks

Litigation Risk

Litigation risk arises from pending or potential legal proceedings against the Group( Note 42) and in the
event that legal issues are not properly dealt with by the Group. Litigation that may arise, whether from
lawsuits or from arbitration proceedings, may affect the operations of the Group as well as its results.

Since October 17, 2019, and as a result of the de- facto capital control and other measures adopted by
Lebanese banks imposing various restrictions of free flow of customers' funds deposited with the
banking sector, the Group has been subject to an increased litigation risk. Management is monitoring
and assessing the impact of existing and/ or potential litigation and claims against the Group in relation
to these restrictive measures taking into consideration prevailing laws, regulations and local banking

I
practices. Although there are uncertainties with respect to outcomes ofany litigation in connection with
the adoption of the various restrictive measures, management considers that any associated claims are
unlikely to have a material adverse impact on the financial position and capital adequacy of the Group.

42.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Bank is defendant in several lawsuits, whereby the aggregate amount claimed by the plaintiffs is
around LBP8. 6billion.

In 2017, the Bank' s accounts and tax returns for the years 2012 till 2014 ( inclusive) were subject to
examination by the tax authorities which resulted in a preliminary assessment ofLBP2.99billion. A final
decision was reached in 2018 where the Bank settled LBP2.8billion. The Bank' s tax returns for the
years 2015 till 2019 inclusive are still subject to review by the relevant tax authorities. Any additional
tax liability depends on the outcome of such reviews.

Moreover, in 2017, the Bank' s social security declarations for the years 2013 till October 2017 were
reviewed resulting in an additional liability of LBPlbillion which was settled during 2017 against
provision for risk and charges. The Bank' s social security declarations for the remaining period is still
subject to review by the relevant social security authorities. Any additional social security liability
depends on the outcome of such reviews.

43.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to comply with the capital adequacy requirements set by Central Bank
of Lebanon.

Central Bank of Lebanon requires each bank or banking groupto hold a minimum level of regulatory1     rY
capital of LBP l Obillion for the head office and LBP500million for each local branch.

I
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1

The Group' s capital is split as follows:

Tier I capital :    Comprises share capital ( common and preferred), premium on preferred shares,
reserves from appropriation of profits,  retained earnings after deductions for
intangible assets and other regulatory adjustments.

Cumulative unfavorable change in fair value of assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are deducted from Tier I Capital.

Tier II capital:    Comprises 50% of the cumulative favorable change in fair value for investments
classified at fair value through other comprehensive income and other regulatory
reserves.

The Group' s consolidated capital adequacy ratio was as follows:

December 31.

2019 2018

LBPmillion LBPmillion

Common equity Tier I 365, 759 617,358
Additional Tier I capital 152,787 152,787

518,546 770, 145
Tier II capital 57,255 39,545
Total regulatory capital 575,801 809,690

I
Credit risk 5, 303, 935 3, 802, 962
Market risk 57,220 49, 500
Operational risk 319, 843 354,408
Risk-weighted assets and risk-weighted off-balance sheet items 5, 680,998 4,206,870

Equity Tier I ratio 6. 44%      14.67%

I
Tier I capital ratio 9. 13%       18. 31%
Risk based capital ratio - Tier I and Tier II capital 10. 14%      19. 25%

The Central Bank of Lebanon issued an intermediary circular # 527 dated September 18, 2019,
amending the risk weights in the capital adequacy ratio computation. Moreover, subsequent to the

I financial position date, the Central Bank of Lebanon issued another intermediary circular# 543 dated
February 3, 2020 related to Capital Adequacy Framework. Main changes are summarized as follows:

I

I

I
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted( unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re- assessing
categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group determines classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

As a result of the unprecedented levels of uncertainty surrounding the economic crisis that Lebanon,
and particularly the banking sector in Lebanon, is experiencing, as described in Note 1, management is
unable to produce reasonable estimation of the fair value of financial assets and liabilities concentrated

in Lebanon as the measurement of their fair value is either ( i) dependent on prices quoted in a market

that is severely inactive and illiquid; or ( ii) determined using cash flow valuation models using
observable market inputs, comprising of interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads.

45.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course ofbusiness, the Group carries on transactions with subsidiaries and related parties,
balances ofwhich are disclosed in the statement of financial position in Notes 6, 8, 9, 17, 18 and 19 and

in the statement of profit or loss in Notes 28, 29, 34, and 35.

Remuneration to executive management paid during 2019 amounted to LBP3. 7billion (LBP2billion in
2018).
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46.  EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

i.     The existence of Novel Coronavirus ( Coved- 19) was confirmed in January 2020 in mainland
China and has subsequently spread to many other countries around the world. This event has
caused widespread disruptions to the business,  with a consequential negative impact on

economic activity. The Bank considers this event to be a non- adjusting event after the reporting

1
period and therefore has not made any adjustments to the financial statements as a result of this
matter. The effect of Covid- 19 on the Bank will be incorporated in the determination of the

Bank' s estimates in 2020, knowing that the uncertainties caused by COVID- 19, will require the
Bank to update the inputs and assumptions used for the determination of expected credit losses

ECLs") and revise the forecast used as part of the assessment for the going concern as well.

1
ii.     Subsequent to the financial position date, on the March 7, 2020, the Lebanese Government has

announced its decision to default on its 6.375% US$ 1, 200,000,000 bonds due March 9, 2020

and on all the remaining outstanding maturities in foreign currencies. Refer to Note 1.

iii.     Subsequent to the financial position date, on August 4, 2020, a devastating deadly explosion
occurred in the Beirut seaport resulting in severe property damages and loss of lives. Refer to
Note 1.

47.  APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 were approved by the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 17, 2020.

i

1
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